

**BOARD OF EDUCATION
UPPER SADDLE RIVER, NEW JERSEY
REGULAR MEETING
Monday, May 10, 2021, 8:00 p.m.**

Agenda

This is a Regular Meeting of the Upper Saddle River Board of Education and appropriate notice has been provided to the designated newspapers, the Borough Clerk and all interested parties requesting such notice.

Three opportunities are provided at this meeting for citizens to make comments. The Board values and welcomes comments and opinions from the residents of Upper Saddle River as long as remarks are not personal or discourteous. Public comment allows the Board to listen to community members and to hear their opinions on school policy and operations.

Members of the public may access the meeting and submit any questions or comments during the portions of the meeting reserved for comments. Persons wishing to comment should identify themselves by name and address; the commenter should direct his/her remarks to the presiding officer. Comments shall be limited to school-related issues and each commenter will limit his/her remarks to three minutes. No person may comment again until all those who wish to comment have had an opportunity and as long as time allows. If, in the judgment of the presiding officer, the total time devoted to public comment becomes excessive, the presiding officer may indicate the Board has time for one more speaker and will so notify the public.

- | | | |
|------|---|-------------------------------|
| I. | Call to order and roll call | Mrs. Johnston |
| II. | Flag salute and Pledge of Allegiance | Mrs. Johnston |
| III. | Opening statement by presiding officer | Mrs. Johnston |
| IV. | REPORTS | |
| A. | Superintendent's Report | Dr. Siegel |
| B. | Board Secretary's Report | Mrs. Imbasciani |
| C. | Board President's Report | Mrs. Johnston |
| D. | Committee Reports | Chairpersons |
| E. | PTO Report | Mrs. Apostolou/Mrs. Degenaars |
| F. | USREF Report | Mrs. Mueller |
| V. | PRESENTATION | |
| | Bogert Library Renovation | Mr. Kaplan/Mr. Padilla |
| VI. | PUBLIC COMMENT (for Agenda Items only) | |
| VII. | ADMINISTRATION | Dr. Siegel |

**This motion will be one motion that encompasses Items A through D and will be voted on at this meeting.
This motion has been recommended for approval by the Superintendent.**

- | | |
|----|--|
| A. | Approve the continued use of the Marshall System for certificated staff evaluations in accordance with the requirements as set forth by AchieveNJ and in collaboration with the District Evaluation Advisory Committee (DEAC) and the School Improvement Panel (SciP) for the 2021/22 school year. |
|----|--|

B. Approve the teacher evaluation rubrics for the 2021/22 school year.

C. First Reading of the following Policies and Regulations:

Policy 0145	Board Member Resignation and Removal (M) (Revised)
Policy 1643	Family Leave (M) (New)
Policy 2415	Every Student Succeeds Act (M) (Revised)
Policy 2415.01	Academic Standards, Academic Assessments, and Accountability (M) (Abolished)
Policy 2415.02	Title 1 – Fiscal Responsibilities (M) (Revised)
Policy 2415.03	Highly Qualified Teachers (M) Abolished
Policy 2415.05	Student Surveys, Analysis, and/or Evaluations (M) (Revised)
Policy 2415.20	Every Student Succeeds Act Complaints (M) (Revised)
Policy 3431.1	Family Leave (Abolished)
Policy 4125	Employment of Support Staff Members (M) (Revised)
Policy 4431.1	Family Leave (Abolished)
Policy 5330.01	Administration of Medical Cannabis (M) Revised
Policy 6360	Political Contributions (M) (Revised)
Policy 7425	Lead Testing of Water in Schools (M) (Revised)
Policy 7430	School Safety (M) (Abolished)
Policy 8330	Student Records (M) (Revised)
Policy 9713	Recruitment by Special Interest Groups (M) (Revised)
Regulation 1642	Earned Sick Leave Law (M) (Revised)
Regulation 2415.20	Every Student Succeeds Act Complaints (M) (Revised)
Regulation 5330.01	Administration of Medical Cannabis (M) (Revised)
Regulation 7425	Lead Testing of Water in Schools (M) (New)
Regulation 7430	School Safety (M) (Abolished)

D. Approve the School Bus Emergency Evacuation Drill Reports (in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:27-11.2) as follows:

1. On May 4, 2021, between 9:30 a.m. and 10:45 a.m., all students in the Reynolds Elementary School, 391 West Saddle River Road, Upper Saddle River, New Jersey, participated in bus emergency evacuation drills. The drills took place in front of the school and included Routes 1, 2 and 3. Mrs. Devin Severs, Reynolds School Principal, and Mr. Thomas Inzalaco, Scholastic Bus Company Safety Director, supervised the drill.
2. On May 4, 2021, between 10:45 a.m. and 11:45 a.m., all students in the Bogert Elementary School, 391 West Saddle River Road, Upper Saddle River, New Jersey, participated in bus emergency evacuation drills. The drills took place in front of the school and included Routes 1, 2 and 3. Mr. David Kaplan Bogert School Principal, and Mr. Thomas Inzalaco, Scholastic Bus Company Safety Director, supervised the drill.
3. On May 5, 2021, between 9:30 a.m. and 10:45 a.m., all students in the Cavallini Middle School, 392 West Saddle River Road, Upper Saddle River, New Jersey, participated in bus emergency evacuation drills. The drills took place in front of the school and included Routes 1, 2 and 3. Mr. Michael DeSocio, Cavallini Assistant Principal, and Mr. Thomas Inzalaco, Scholastic Bus Company Safety Director, supervised the drill.

VIII. PERSONNEL

Dr. Siegel

This motion will be one motion that encompasses items A through G and will be voted on at this meeting. This motion has been recommended for approval by the Superintendent.

A. Create/Abolish (not applicable)

B. Resignations

1. Accept the resignation of Joan Meller, Campus Aide, effective July 1, 2021.
2. Accept the resignation for purpose of retirement of Suzanne Mignone, Paraprofessional, effective July 1, 2021.
3. Accept the resignation of Patricia Palmerini, Lunch Aide, effective May 1, 2021.
4. Accept the resignation for the purpose of retirement of Kathryn Pedrani, Paraprofessional, effective July 1, 2021.
5. Accept the resignation of Noelle Vosseler, Mathematics Teacher at Cavallini, effective July 1, 2021.

C. Leaves

1. Approve a paid medical leave and unpaid FMLA/NJFLA leave for Employee ID #0799, effective September 1, 2021 through approximately November 26, 2021.
2. Approve a paid medical leave for Employee ID# 0837, effective May 3, 2021 through June 30, 2021.

D. Change in Assignment (not applicable)

E. Appointments

1. Approve the reappointment of contractual bargaining unit non-certificated staff for the 2021/22 school year, as per attached.
2. Approve the reappointment of non-bargaining staff for the 2021/22 school year, as per attached.
3. Appoint Angelina Aragona to the position of long term Grades 3-5 Elementary Classroom Teacher, BA, Step 1, effective September 1, 2021 through approximately November 26, 2021, subject to receipt of the required NJ teaching certificate.
4. Appoint Jessica Pike to the position of Mathematics Teacher at Cavallini Middle School, BA, Step 1, effective September 1, 2021, subject to the receipt of the required NJ teacher certificate.

F. Substitutes/Consultants/Volunteers

1. Approve Sophia Faraz as a substitute teacher/paraprofessional for the 2020/2021 school year subject to the satisfactory completion of the criminal history records check required by law. Ms. Faraz's substitute teacher's certificate is pending.

G. Salaries

1. Approve the 2021/22 salaries of all non-bargaining staff as follows:

Cunningham, Lisa	Lunch Aide
Forzono, Diane	Lunch Aide
Lefebvre, Lisa	Lunch Aide

Neumann, Gail	Lunch Aide
Roskamp Maimone, Laura	Lunch Aide
Schreiber, Jaclyn	Lunch Aide
Woodhouse, Lisa	Lunch Aide
Pfohl, Jennifer	Treasurer of School Monies
Betz-Radleigh, Susan	Campus Aide
Decandia-Pook, Connie	Campus Aide
Eraiba, Dean	Campus Aide
Dolan, Janine	Campus Aide
Taylor, Thomas	Campus Aide
Wagner, Joanne	Campus Aide
Ranges, Robyn	Registered Nurse
Ruffilo, Melissa	Registered Nurse
Wierzbicki, Kelley	Registered Nurse
Pinto, Laura	Behaviorist
Dunn, Colette	Confidential Secretary
Griffin, Angela	Confidential Secretary
Kreger, Sandra	Confidential Secretary
McGovern, Ann	Confidential Secretary
Miller, Linda	Confidential Secretary
Leka, Nijazi	Supervisor, Buildings & Grounds
Newman, Scott	Network Technician

IX. **FINANCE**

Mrs. Imbasciani

This motion will be one motion that encompasses items A through H and will be voted on at this meeting. This motion has been recommended for approval by the Superintendent.

- A. Approve the Minutes of Board Meeting:

April 26, 2021

- B. Approve the Bills List for April 2021 as follows:

10	General Current Expense	\$78,331.11
11	General Current Expense	\$2,085,475.33
12	Capital Outlay	\$291,354.00
20	Special Revenue Funds	\$27,107.87
60	Enterprise Fund	\$10,990.47
	Total	\$2,493,258.78

- C. Approve the Transfers for April 2021.

- D. Approve the Board Secretary and Treasurer's Reports dated April 2021 and to certify that after review of these reports and upon consultation with appropriate district officials, as to the best of our knowledge, no major account or fund has been over expended in violation of NJAC 6A:23-2.11 and that sufficient funds are available to meet the district's financial obligation for the remainder of the year.

E. Approve the following Resolution:

WHEREAS, on or about September 24, 2020, the Upper Saddle River Board of Education (hereinafter referred to as the "Board") approved merit bonus goals for the Superintendent for the 2020-2021 school year consisting of three (3) quantitative merit criteria and two (2) qualitative merit criteria and submitted the same to the Executive County Superintendent for approval in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-3.1(e)10(ii) (hereinafter referred to as "Merit Bonus Goals"); and

WHEREAS, on or about September 29, 2020, the Executive County Superintendent approved said Merit Bonus Goals, thereby authorizing the Board to evaluate and award merit bonus increases to the Superintendent upon achievement of each objective; and

Merit Goal 1: WHEREAS, the Superintendent of Schools facilitated 10 formal meetings with our newly hired Regional Curriculum Coordinator to monitor and facilitate a successful transition with the new position following a period of restructuring in the Quad-District Curriculum Office. The superintendent conducted 4 site visits to observe the interactions and collaboration occurring through the Regional Curriculum Office thereby entitling him to a quantitative merit bonus of 3.33% of his annual salary in the amount of \$5,817.14; and

Merit Goal 2: WHEREAS, the Superintendent of Schools organized, planned, and facilitated the development of 10 parent wellness academy sessions delivered through virtual platforms to provide families with relevant content and guide children in conjunction with the district's wellness initiatives, thereby entitling him to a quantitative merit bonus of 3.33% of his annual salary in the amount of \$5,817.14; and

Merit Goal 3: WHEREAS, the Superintendent of Schools instituted monthly supervisory meetings with the nine district/building administrators and two non-teaching staff members (Instructional Coach & Mental Health Social Worker) to create a consistent and common forum for review of individual goals, feedback on various professional roles, and discussions about professional growth. In general, the monthly meeting schedule provided an opportunity to review themes and issues that surface within the district, thereby entitling him to a quantitative merit bonus of 3.33% of his annual salary in the amount of \$5,817.14; and

Merit Goal 4: WHEREAS, the Superintendent of Schools researched, developed, and implemented a comprehensive districtwide communication plan that encompasses a clear, consistent, deliberate, and efficient process for parents to obtain school-related information at every point of communication, thereby entitling him to a qualitative merit bonus of 2.5% of his annual salary in the amount of \$4,367.22; and

Merit Goal 5: WHEREAS, the Superintendent of Schools reviewed, modeled, and guided BOE members, staff members, parents, and students on the "Community Circle" approach to social-emotional learning. The district launched this platform to teach social development, communication skills, emotional regulation, and citizenship, thereby entitling him to a qualitative merit bonus of 2.5% of his annual salary in the amount of \$4,367.22; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board hereby approves a non-pensionable merit bonus in the amount of 14.99% of the Superintendent's annual salary in the amount of \$26,185.86 for the 2020-2021 school year subject to approval by the Executive County Superintendent that the quantitative and qualitative merit criteria for each of the Board assessed objectives have been satisfied for the payment of such merit bonus.

F. Approve the submission of the 2020/21 Application for Extraordinary Special Education Aid (EXAID).

G. Accept the donation of \$500 from Dr. Gene Solomon to help create and stock a small section of books in the Cavallini Library in the name of Mr. James G. Meisterich, the first Principal of Cavallini Middle School.

H. Approve the following Travel Expenses:

Program Name	Date	Employee	Registration Fees	Travel Cost
Comprehensive IMSE Orton-Gillingham Training (Online)	June 28-July 2, 2021	Rachel Squicciarri	\$1,275.00	\$0.00
US History: A New Approach to Teaching the Reconstruction Era (Online)	August 9-12, 2021	Katherine Kaldawi	\$50.00	\$0.00

X. PUBLIC COMMENT

XI. ADJOURNMENT

Mrs. Johnston

Non-Bargaining Appointments
May 10, 2021

Name	Category	Tenured
Dunn, Colette	Confidential Secretary	Y
Griffin, Angela	Confidential Secretary	Y
Kreger, Sandra	Confidential Secretary	Y
McGovern, Ann	Acct. Payable/Conf. Secretary	Y
Miller, Linda	Payroll/Benefits/Conf. Secretary	Y
Leka, Nijazi	Supervisor of B & G	N
Cunningham, Lisa	Lunch Aide	N
Forzono, Diane	Lunch Aide	N
Lefebvre, Lisa	Lunch Aide	
Neumann, Gail	Lunch Aide	N
Roskamp Maimone, Laura	Lunch Aide	N
Schreiber, Jaclyn	Lunch Aide	N
Woodhouse, Lisa	Lunch Aide	N
Betz Radleigh, Susan	Campus Aide	N
Decandia-Pook, Connie	Campus Aide	N
Dolan, Janine	Campus Aide	N
Eraiba, Dean	Campus Aide	N
Taylor, Thomas	Campus Aide	N
Wagner, Joanne	Campus Aide	N
Newman, Scott	Network Technician	N
Pfohl, Jennifer	Treasurer	N
Pinto, Laura	Behaviorist	N
Ranges, Robyn	Registered Nurse	N
Ruffilo, Melissa	Registered Nurse	N
Wierzbicki, Kelley	Registered Nurse	N

Contractual Appointments

May 10, 2021

Name	Tenured	Category	FTE
Doherty, Susan	Y	Secretary	
Donadio, Patricia	Y	Secretary	
Finn, Carol	Y	Secretary	
Musumeci, Geraldine	Y	Secretary	
Perrucci, Annette	Y	Secretary	
Van Blarcom, Maureen	Y	Secretary	
Abazi, Erion	N	Custodian - Night	
Alba, Alex	N	Custodian - Night	
Belasic, Zeljko	N	Grounds Custodian	
Caputo, Nicholas	N	Custodian - Night	
Cuni, Hamdi	N	Custodian	
Hakrama, Shefik	N	Custodian - Night	
Kirsch, Scott	N	Custodian	
Kykta, Ivan	N	Maintenance	
Lala, Pietro	N	Custodian	
Milarck, Mitchell	N	Custodian - Night	
Oswald, Allen	N	Custodian - Night	.50
Smith, Eric	N	Custodian - Night	
Taveras Luna, Francisco	N	Custodian	
Vargas, Jose	N	Custodian - Night	
Asta, Jacquelyn	N	Paraprofessional	
Aufiero, Joan	N	Paraprofessional	
Balji, Heather	N	Paraprofessional	
Carucci, Michelle	N	Paraprofessional 3-5	
Christensen, Nicole	N	Paraprofessional	
Foelsch, Kristen	N	Paraprofessional 3-5 ABA	
Georgali DiFranco, Simona	N	Paraprofessional 3-5 ABA	
Griffith, Josephine	N	Paraprofessional	
Ho, Linda	N	Paraprofessional	
Hoffman, Danielle	N	Paraprofessional	
Holder, Jacqueline	N	Paraprofessional	
Kasnia Flood, Susan	N	Paraprofessional	
Khalessi, Saghar	N	Paraprofessional ABA	
Kleinman, Helaine	N	Paraprofessional	
Kline, Christine	N	Paraprofessional ABA	
Koppenaar, Jeanne	N	Paraprofessional	
Mark, Elissa	N	Paraprofessional ABA	
Martino, Adriana	N	Paraprofessional	
Merritt, Catherine A	N	Paraprofessional	
O'Connor, Sean	N	Paraprofessional	

Name	Tenured	Category	FTE
Popeil, Mora	N	Paraprofessional	
Princiotto, Deborah	N	Paraprofessional	
Quinones, April	N	Paraprofessional ABA	
Radicke, Lynne	N	Paraprofessional	
Rohdieck, Kristen	N	Paraprofessional ABA	
Scotti, Karin	N	Paraprofessional	
Vido, Christine	N	Paraprofessional 3-5 ABA	
Wachino, Lisa	N	Paraprofessional ABA	
Wehrle, Jennifer	N	Paraprofessional 3-5 ABA	
Wei, Susan	N	Paraprofessional	
Yuhas, Renee	N	Paraprofessional	
Zumbano, Carol	N	Paraprofessional 3-5	

POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

DRAFT

Bylaws
0145/Page 1 of 1
BOARD MEMBER RESIGNATION AND REMOVAL

0145 BOARD MEMBER RESIGNATION AND REMOVAL

The membership of a Board of Education member shall terminate immediately upon:

1. ~~_____~~ The cessation of the member's bona fide residency in the school district the member represents; (N.J.S.A. 18A:12-2.2); or
2. ~~_____~~ The member's election or appointment to the office of mayor or member of the governing body of Upper Saddle River; (N.J.S.A. 18A:12-2.2); or
3. ~~_____~~ The member's disqualification from voting pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:4-1; (N.J.S.A. 18A:12-2.2); or
4. ~~_____~~ The ~~member's conviction for false swearing for having~~member falsely ~~affirmed~~affirms or ~~declared~~declares that he/she is ~~qualified~~not disqualified ~~as a voter pursuant to vote;~~N.J.S.A. 19:4-1 ~~or that he/she is not disqualified from membership on the Board due to conviction of a crime or offense listed in N.J.S.A. 18A:12-1;~~ or
5. ~~_____~~ The removal of the member by the Commissioner of Education; or
6. ~~_____~~ Recall of a Board member pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:27A-1 et seq.

A member who fails to attend three consecutive ~~regular~~ meetings of the Board without good cause may be removed from office on the affirmative votes ~~of~~ aby majority of the remaining Board members, provided that:

1. ~~_____~~ The member's removal was proposed at the immediately previous Board meeting; and
2. ~~_____~~ Notice of the proposed removal was given to the affected member at least ~~seventy-two~~forty-eight hours in advance of the meeting at which the vote will be taken.

N.J.S.A. 18A:12-2; 18A:12-2.2; 18A:12-3; 18A:12-29
N.J.S.A. 19:27A-1 et seq.

- Adopted: 19 May 2008

Revised:



POLICY GUIDE

DRAFT

ADMINISTRATION

1643/page 1 of 41

Family Leave

Jan 21

M

1643 FAMILY LEAVE

The Board of Education will provide family leave to staff members in accordance with the New Jersey Family Leave Act (NJFLA) and the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA). These laws have similar and different provisions that provide different rights and obligations for a staff member and the Board.

If a staff member is eligible for leave for reasons recognized under both the FMLA and NJFLA, then the time taken shall run concurrently and be applied to both laws. The NJFLA provides twelve weeks leave in a twenty-four month period and the FMLA provides twelve weeks leave in a twelve month period

A. New Jersey Family Leave Act

1. Definitions Relative to New Jersey Family Leave Act

“Base Hours” means the hours of work for which a staff member receives compensation. Base hours shall include overtime hours for which a staff member is paid additional or overtime compensation, and hours for which a staff member receives workers’ compensation benefits. Base hours shall also include hours a staff member would have worked except for having been in military service. Base hours do not include hours for when a staff member receives other types of compensation, such as administrative, personal leave, vacation, or sick leave.

“Child” means a biological, adopted, foster child, or resource family child, stepchild, legal ward, or child of a parent, including a child who becomes the child of a parent pursuant to a valid written agreement between the parent and a gestational carrier.

“Eligible employee” means any individual employed by the same employer for twelve months or more, who has worked 1,000 or more base hours during the preceding twelve month period.

“Employer” includes the State, any political subdivision thereof, and all public offices, agencies, boards, or bodies.

POLICY GUIDE

“Family member” means a child, parent, parent-in-law, sibling, grandparent, grandchild, spouse, domestic partner, or one partner in a civil union couple, or any other individual related by blood to a staff member, and any other individual that a staff member shows to have a close association with a staff member which is the equivalent of a family relationship.

“Health care provider” means a duly licensed health care provider or other health care provider deemed appropriate by the Director of the Division on Civil Rights in the New Jersey Department of Law and Public Safety.

“Parent” means a person who is the biological parent, adoptive parent, foster parent, resource family parent, step-parent, parent-in-law, or legal guardian, having a “parent-child relationship” with a child as defined by law, or having sole or joint legal or physical custody, care, guardianship, or visitation with a child, or who became the parent of the child pursuant to a valid written agreement between the parent and a gestational carrier.

“Serious health condition” means an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition which requires:

- a. Inpatient care in a hospital, hospice, or residential medical care facility; or
- b. Continuing medical treatment or continuing supervision by a health care provider.

As used in the definition of a serious health condition, “continuing medical treatment or continuing supervision by a health care provider” means:

- a. A period of incapacity (that is, inability to work, attend school, or perform regular daily activities due to a serious health condition, treatment therefore, and recovery therefrom) of more than three consecutive days, and any subsequent treatment or period of incapacity relating to the same condition, that also involves:
 - (1) Treatment two or more times by a health care provider; or

POLICY GUIDE

- (2) Treatment by a health care provider on one occasion which results in a regimen of continuing treatment under the supervision of a health care provider;
- b. Any period of incapacity due to pregnancy, or for prenatal care;
- c. Any period of incapacity or treatment for such incapacity due to a chronic serious health condition;
- d. A period of incapacity, which is permanent or long-term, due to a condition for which treatment may not be effective (such as Alzheimer's disease, a severe stroke, or the terminal stages of a disease) where the individual is under continuing supervision of, but need not be receiving active treatment by, a health care provider; or
- e. Any period of absence to receive multiple treatments (including any period of recovery therefrom) by a health care provider or by a provider of health care services under orders of, or on referral by a health care provider, either for restorative surgery after an accident or other injury, or for a condition that would likely result in a period of incapacity of more than three consecutive calendar days in the absence of medical intervention or treatment, such as cancer (chemotherapy, radiation, etc.), severe arthritis (physical therapy), or kidney disease (dialysis).

"Spouse" means a person to whom a staff member is lawfully married as defined by New Jersey law.

"State of emergency" means a natural or man-made disaster or emergency for which a state of emergency has been declared by the President of the United States or the Governor, or for which a state of emergency has been declared by a municipal emergency management coordinator.

2. Reasons for NJFLA Leave

- a. A staff member may take NJFLA leave to provide care made necessary by reason of:
 - (1) The birth of a child of the staff member, including a child born pursuant to a valid written agreement between the staff member and the gestational carrier;

POLICY GUIDE

- (2) The placement of a child into foster care with the staff member or in connection with adoption of such child by a staff member;
- (3) The serious health condition of a family member of the staff member; or
- (4) A state of emergency declared by the Governor of New Jersey, or when indicated to be needed by the Commissioner of Health – New Jersey Department of Health or other public health authority, an epidemic or communicable disease, a known or suspected exposure to the communicable disease, or efforts to prevent spread of a communicable disease which:
 - (a) Requires in-home care or treatment of a child due to the closure of the school or place of care of the child of a staff member, by order of a public official due to the epidemic or other public health emergency;
 - (b) Prompts the issuance by a public health authority of a determination, including by mandatory quarantine, requiring or imposing responsive or prophylactic measures as a result of illness caused by an epidemic of a communicable disease or known or suspected exposure to the communicable disease because the presence in the community of a family member in need of care by a staff member would jeopardize the health of others; or
 - (c) Results in the recommendation of a health care provider or public health authority, that a family member in need of care by a staff member voluntarily undergo self-quarantine as a result of suspected exposure to a communicable disease because the presence in the community of that family member in need of care by a staff member, would jeopardize the health of others.

POLICY GUIDE

3. Staff Member Eligibility

- a. NJFLA leave may be taken for up to twelve weeks within any twenty-four month period. The NJFLA leave shall be unpaid with benefits subject to contributions required to be made by the staff member.
- b. A staff member is eligible for NJFLA leave if a staff member is employed by the same Board for twelve months or more, and has worked 1,000 or more base hours during the preceding twelve month period.
- c. The method to determine the twenty-four month period in which the twelve weeks of NJFLA leave entitlement occurs shall be

[Select one option

- ☐ the calendar year.
- ☐ any fixed "leave year," such as a fiscal year or a year starting on a staff member's "anniversary date".
- ☐ the twenty-four month period measured forward from the date any staff member's first leave under NJFLA begins.
- ☐ a "rolling" twenty-four month period measured backward from the date a staff member uses any leave under NJFLA. **(Recommended)**

- d. This Policy shall serve as notice to all staff members of the method chosen in A.3.c. above. This method shall be applied consistently and uniformly to all staff members.
 - (1) If the Board transitions to another method, the Board is required to give at least sixty days' notice to all staff members and the transition must take place in such a way that staff members retain their full benefit of twelve weeks of NJFLA leave under whichever method affords the greatest benefit to a staff member.
- e. The Board shall grant NJFLA leave to more than one staff member from the same family (for example, a husband and

POLICY GUIDE

a wife, or a brother and a sister) at the same time, provided such staff members are otherwise eligible for NJFLA leave.

- f. The fact that a holiday may occur within the week taken by a staff member as NJFLA leave has no effect and the week is counted as a week of NJFLA leave.

- (1) However, if a staff member is out on NJFLA leave and the staff member is not regularly scheduled to work for one or more weeks, the weeks the staff member is not regularly scheduled to work do not count against their NJFLA leave entitlement.

4. Types of NJFLA Leave

- a. Staff members are required to provide notice in writing for any NJFLA leave requested. In emergent circumstances, a staff member may provide the Board with oral notice when written notice is impracticable.
 - (1) Staff members must provide the Board written notice after submitting oral notice in emergent circumstances.
- b. Consecutive NJFLA leave is NJFLA leave that is taken without interruption based upon a staff member's regular work schedule and does not include breaks in employment in which a staff member is not regularly scheduled to work.
 - (1) A staff member must provide the Board with notice of consecutive NJFLA leave no later than thirty days prior to the commencement of consecutive NJFLA leave, except where emergent circumstances warrant shorter notice.
 - (2) A staff member shall provide the Board with certification pursuant to A.5. below.
- c. Intermittent NJFLA leave is NJFLA leave due to a single qualifying reason, taken in separate periods of time, broken up by periods in which the staff member returns to work.
 - (1) A staff member is entitled to take NJFLA leave intermittently for the birth of a child of the staff member, including a child born pursuant to a valid

POLICY GUIDE

written agreement between the staff member and a gestational carrier or the placement of a child into foster care with the staff member or in connection with adoption of such child by the staff member.

- (a) The staff member shall provide the Board with prior notice of not less than fifteen calendar days before the first day on which NJFLI benefits are paid for the intermittent NJFLA leave, unless an emergency or other unforeseen circumstance precludes prior notice.
 - (b) The staff member shall make a reasonable effort to schedule the intermittent NJFLA leave so as not to unduly disrupt the operations of the Board and, if possible, provide the Board, prior to the commencement of intermittent NJFLA leave, with a regular schedule of the days or days of the week on which the intermittent NJFLA leave will be taken.
 - (c) A staff member shall provide the Board with certification for intermittent NJFLA leave pursuant to A.5.b. below.
- (2) The staff member is entitled to take intermittent NJFLA leave for the serious health condition of a family member of the staff member when medically necessary if:
- (a) The total time which the intermittent NJFLA leave is taken does not exceed twelve months if taken in connection with a single serious health condition. If the intermittent NJFLA leave is taken in connection with more than one serious health condition, the intermittent NJFLA leave must be taken within a consecutive twenty-four month period or until such time the twelve week NJFLA leave is exhausted, whichever is shorter;
 - (b) The staff member provides the Board with prior notice of not less than fifteen calendar

POLICY GUIDE

days before the first day on which benefits are paid for the intermittent NJFLA leave.

- (i) The staff member may provide notice less than fifteen days prior to the intermittent NJFLA leave if an emergency or other unforeseen circumstance precludes prior notice;
 - (c) The staff member makes a reasonable effort to schedule the intermittent NJFLA leave so as not to unduly disrupt the operations of the school district and, if possible, provide the school district, prior to the commencement of intermittent NJFLA leave, with a regular schedule of the days or days of the week on which the intermittent NJFLA leave will be taken; and
 - (d) The staff member provides the Board with a copy of the certification outlined in A.5.c. below.
- (3) In the case of NJFLA leave taken due to an epidemic of a communicable disease, a known or suspected exposure to the communicable disease, or efforts to prevent spread of the communicable disease, the NJFLA leave may only be taken intermittently if:
 - (a) The staff member provides the Board with prior notice of the intermittent NJFLA leave as soon as practicable;
 - (b) The staff member makes a reasonable effort to schedule the NJFLA leave so as not to unduly disrupt the operations of the school district and, if possible, provide the school district prior to the commencement of the intermittent NJFLA leave, with a regular schedule of the day or days of the week on which the intermittent NJFLA leave will be taken; and

POLICY GUIDE

- (c) A staff member provides the Board with a copy of the certification outlined in A.5.d. below.
- (4) Intermittent leave taken on a reduced leave schedule is NJFLA leave due to a single qualifying reason, that is scheduled for fewer than a staff member's usual number of hours worked per workweek, but not for fewer than a staff member's usual number of hours worked per workday and may only be taken to care for the serious health condition of a family member of a staff member when medically necessary, except that:
 - (a) A staff member shall not be entitled to intermittent NJFLA leave on a reduced leave schedule for a period exceeding twelve consecutive months for any one period of NJFLA leave;
 - (b) The staff member must provide the Board with prior notice of the intermittent NJFLA leave on a reduced leave schedule as soon as practicable;
 - (c) A staff member shall make a reasonable effort to schedule intermittent NJFLA leave on a reduced leave schedule so as not to disrupt unduly the operations of the school district. A staff member shall provide the school district with prior notice of the care, medical treatment, or continuing supervision by a health care provider necessary due to a serious health condition of a family member, in a manner which is reasonable and practicable; and
 - (d) A staff member must provide the Board with a copy of the certification outlined in A.5.c. below.
- d. NJFLA leave taken because of the birth or placement for adoption of a child of the staff member may commence at any time within a year after the date of the foster care placement, birth, or placement for adoption.

POLICY GUIDE

- e. A staff member shall not, during any period of NJFLA leave, perform services on a full-time basis for any person for whom a staff member did not provide those services immediately prior to commencement of the NJFLA leave.
 - (1) A staff member on NJFLA leave may not engage in other full-time employment during the term of the NJFLA leave, unless such employment commenced prior to the NJFLA leave and is not otherwise prohibited by law.
 - (2) During the term of NJFLA leave a staff member may commence part-time employment which shall not exceed half the regularly scheduled hours worked for the Board from whom a staff member requested NJFLA leave. A staff member may continue part-time employment which commenced prior to a staff member's NJFLA leave, at the same number of hours that a staff member was regularly scheduled prior to such NJFLA leave.
 - (3) The Board may not maintain a policy or practice which prohibits part-time employment during the course of a NJFLA leave.
- 5. Certification
 - a. The Board shall require a staff member who requests NJFLA leave to sign a form of certification established by the Board attesting that such staff member is taking NJFLA leave in accordance with the law.
 - (1) The Board may not require a staff member to sign or otherwise submit a form of certification attesting to additional facts, including a staff member's eligibility for NJFLA leave.
 - (2) The Board may subject a staff member to reasonable disciplinary measures, depending on the circumstances, when a staff member intentionally misrepresents the reason that such staff member is taking NJFLA leave.

POLICY GUIDE

- (3) The form of certification established by the Board shall contain a statement warning a staff member of the consequences of refusing to sign the certification or falsely certifying. Any staff member who refuses to sign the certification established by the Board may be denied the requested NJFLA leave.
 - (4) The Board requires that any period of NJFLA leave be supported by certification issued by a health care provider.
- b. Where the certification, issued by the health care provider, is for the birth of a child of a staff member, including a child born pursuant to a valid written agreement between the staff member and a gestational carrier or the placement of a child into foster care with the staff member or in connection with adoption of such child by the staff member, the certification need only state the date of birth or date of placement, whichever is appropriate.
- c. Any period of NJFLA leave for the serious health condition of a family member of a staff member shall be supported by certification provided by a health care provider. The certification shall be sufficient if it states:
 - (1) The date, if known, on which the serious health condition commenced;
 - (2) The probable duration of the condition;
 - (3) The medical facts within the knowledge of the provider of the certification regarding the condition;
 - (4) The serious health condition warrants the participation of the staff member in providing health care to the family member, as provided in the "Family Leave Act," P.L. 1989, c.261 (C.34:11B-1 et seq.) and regulations adopted pursuant to the NJFLA;
 - (5) An estimate of the amount of time the staff member is needed for participation in the care of the family member;

POLICY GUIDE

- (6) If the NJFLA leave is intermittent, a statement of the medical necessity for the intermittent NJFLA leave and the expected duration of the intermittent NJFLA leave; and
 - (7) If NJFLA leave is intermittent and for planned medical treatment, the dates of the treatment.
- d. In any case in which the Board has reason to doubt the validity of the certification provided pursuant to A.5.c. above, the Board may require, at its own expense, that a staff member obtain an opinion regarding the serious health condition from a second health care provider designated or approved, but not employed on a regular basis, by the Board. If the second opinion differs from the certification provided pursuant to A.5.c. above, the Board may require, at its own expense, that a staff member obtain the opinion of a third health care provider designated or approved jointly by the Board and a staff member concerning the serious health condition. The opinion of the third health care provider shall be considered to be final and shall be binding on the Board and a staff member.
- e. Where the certification is for an epidemic of a communicable disease, a known or suspected exposure to the communicable disease, or efforts to prevent the spread of the communicable disease, the certification shall be sufficient if it includes:
 - (1) For NJFLA leave taken to provide in-home care or treatment of a child due to the closure of the school or place of care of the child of a staff member, by order of a public official due to the epidemic or other public health emergency, the date on which the closure of the school or place of care of the child of a staff member commenced and the reason for such closure;
 - (2) For NJFLA leave taken due to a public health authority's issuance of a determination requiring or imposing responsive or prophylactic measures as a result of illness caused by an epidemic of a communicable disease or known or suspected exposure to the communicable disease because the presence in the community of a family member in

POLICY GUIDE

need of care by a staff member would jeopardize the health of others, the date of issuance of the determination, and the probable duration of the determination; or

- (3) For NJFLA leave taken because a health care provider or public health authority recommends that a family member in need of care by a staff member voluntarily undergo self-quarantine as a result of suspected exposure to a communicable disease because the presence in the community of that family member in need of care by a staff member would jeopardize the health of others, the date of the recommendation, the probable duration of the condition, and the medical or other facts within the health care provider or public health authority's knowledge regarding the condition.

- f. The Board shall not use the certification requirements as outlined in A.5. to intimidate, harass, or otherwise discourage a staff member from requesting or taking NJFLA leave or asserting any of a staff member's rights to NJFLA leave.

6. Denial or Exemption of NJFLA Leave

a. Denial of NJFLA Leave

- (1) The Board may deny NJFLA leave to a staff member if:
 - (a) A staff member is a salaried staff member who is among the highest paid 5% of the Board's staff members or the seven highest paid staff members of the Board, whichever is greater;
 - (b) The denial is necessary to prevent substantial and grievous economic injury to the Board's operations; and
 - (c) The Board notifies a staff member of its intent to deny the NJFLA leave at the time the Board determines that the denial is necessary.

POLICY GUIDE

- (2) The provisions of A.6.a.(1) above shall not apply when, in the event of a state of emergency declared by the Governor of New Jersey or when indicated to be needed by the Commissioner of Health – New Jersey Department of Health or other public health authority, the NJFLA leave is for an epidemic of a communicable disease, a known or suspected exposure to a communicable disease, or efforts to prevent spread of a communicable disease.
- (3) In any case in which NJFLA leave has already commenced at the time of the notification pursuant to A.6.a.(1)(c) above, a staff member shall return to work within ten working days of the date of notification.

7. Reinstatement from NJFLA Leave

- a. Upon the expiration of a NJFLA leave, a staff member shall be restored to the position such staff member held immediately prior to the commencement of the NJFLA leave. If such position has been filled, the Board shall reinstate such staff member to an equivalent position of like seniority, status, employment benefits, pay, and other terms and conditions of employment.
- b. If, during NJFLA leave, the Board experiences a reduction in force or layoff and a staff member would have lost their position had a staff member not been on NJFLA leave, as a result of the reduction in force or pursuant to the good faith operation of a bona fide layoff and recall system including a system under a collective bargaining agreement where applicable, a staff member shall not be entitled to reinstatement to the former or an equivalent position. A staff member shall retain all rights under any applicable layoff and recall system, including a system under a collective bargaining agreement, as if a staff member had not taken the NJFLA leave.

8. Notice to Staff Members

- a. The Board shall display the official Family Leave Act poster of the Division on Civil Rights in the New Jersey Department of Law and Public Safety (Division) in

POLICY GUIDE

accordance with N.J.A.C. 13:8-2.2. The poster is available for printing from the Division's website.

- b. Access to and/or distribution of this Policy shall serve as school district notice to staff members of their rights pursuant to N.J.A.C. 13:14-1.14.

9. Local Board of Education Practices

a. Accrued Paid NJFLA Leave

- (1) Whether a staff member is required to use any other accrued leave time concurrent with NJFLA leave time will depend upon either the school district's practice or a provision in a collective bargaining agreement, if applicable.
 - (a) Sick leave may only be used concurrently with the NJFLA leave in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:30-1 and N.J.S.A. 34:11B-3.

b. Multiple Leaves of Absence

- (1) Where a Board maintains leaves of absence which provide benefits, other than health benefits, that differ depending upon the type of leave taken, the Board shall provide those benefits to a staff member on NJFLA leave in the same manner as it provides benefits to staff members who are granted other leaves of absence which most closely resemble NJFLA leave.

10. New Jersey Family Leave Insurance Program (NJFLI)

- a. Board of Education staff members are eligible to apply for benefits under the NJFLI Program administered by the State of New Jersey Department of Labor and Workforce Development.
- b. All applications for benefits under the NJFLI Program must be filed directly with the State of New Jersey Department of Labor and Workforce Development. The eligibility requirements, wage requirements, benefit duration and amounts, and benefit limitations shall be in accordance with

POLICY GUIDE

the provisions of the NJFLI Program as administered by the State of New Jersey Department of Labor and Workforce Development. A formal appeal may be submitted to the State of New Jersey Department of Labor and Workforce Development if an employee or the Board disagrees with a determination on a claim.

- c. The NJFLI Program provides eligible individuals a monetary benefit and not a leave benefit. The school district administrative and related staff will comply with the State of New Jersey Department of Labor and Workforce Development requests for information in accordance with the provisions of N.J.A.C. 12:21-3.9.
- d. A printed notification of staff members' rights relative to the receipt of benefits under the NJFLI Program will be posted in each of the school district worksites and in a place or places accessible to all employees at the worksite.
- e. Each staff member shall receive a copy of this notification in writing at the time of the staff member's hiring, whenever the staff member provides written notice to the Superintendent of their intention to apply for benefits under the NJFLI Program, or at any time upon the first request of the staff member.
 - (1) The written notification may be transmitted to the staff member in electronic form.
 - (2) Access to and/or distribution of this Policy shall serve as school district notice to staff members of their rights under the NJFLI Program.

B. Federal Family and Medical Leave Act

1. Definitions Relative to Federal Family and Medical Leave Act

"Covered Employer" means any public or private elementary or secondary school(s) regardless of the number of employees employed.

"Employee" means a staff member eligible for family and medical leave in accordance with the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA).

POLICY GUIDE

“Hours of Service” means hours actually worked by the employee. It does not mean hours paid. Thus, non-working time – such as vacations, holidays, furloughs, sick leave, or other time-off (paid or otherwise) – does not count for purposes of calculating FMLA eligibility for the employee.

“Parent” means a biological, adoptive, step, or foster father or mother, or any other individual who stood in loco parentis to a staff member when a staff member has a son or daughter as defined below. This term does not include parents “in law.”

“Serious health condition” means an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves inpatient care in a hospital, hospice, or residential medical facility or continuing treatment by a health care provider. “Serious health condition” may include treatment of substance abuse pursuant to 29 CFR §825.119.

“Son” or “daughter” means a biological, adopted, or foster child, stepchild, a legal ward, or a child of a person standing in loco parentis, who is either under age eighteen or age eighteen or older and incapable of self-care because of a mental or physical disability at the time that FMLA leave is to commence.

“Spouse” means a husband or wife. For purposes of this definition, husband or wife refers to the other person with whom an individual entered into marriage as defined or recognized under State law in the State in which the marriage was entered into or, in the case of a marriage entered into outside of any State, if the marriage is valid in the place where entered into and could have been entered into in at least one State. This definition includes an individual in a same-sex marriage or common law marriage.

“Week” or “Workweek” means the number of days a staff member normally works each calendar week.

2. Qualifying Reasons for FMLA Leave

- a. A staff member may take FMLA leave to provide care made necessary:
 - (1) For the birth of a son or daughter of a staff member and in order to care for such son or daughter;
 - (2) For the placement of a son or daughter with a staff member for adoption or foster care;

POLICY GUIDE

- (3) In order to care for the spouse, son, daughter, or parent of a staff member if such spouse, son, daughter, or parent has a serious health condition;
 - (4) For a serious health condition that makes a staff member unable to perform the functions of the position of such staff member.
 - b. FMLA leave taken in relation to military service shall be in accordance with 29 CFR §825.112.
 - c. Entitlement to FMLA leave taken for the birth of a son or daughter or placement of a son or daughter with a staff member for adoption or foster care shall expire at the end of the twelve month period beginning on the date of such birth or placement.
- 3. Staff Member Eligibility
 - a. A staff member is eligible for up to twelve weeks of FMLA leave in a twelve month period.
 - b. A staff member shall become eligible for FMLA leave after the staff member has been employed at least twelve months by the Board and employed for at least 1,250 hours of service during the twelve month period immediately preceding the commencement of the FMLA leave.
 - (1) The twelve months a staff member must have been employed need not be consecutive months pursuant to 29 CFR §825.110(b).
 - (2) The minimum 1,250 hours of service shall be determined according to the principles established under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) for determining compensable hours of work pursuant to 29 CFR §785.
 - (3) The Board shall not provide pay for FMLA leave.
 - c. The method to determine the twelve month period in which the twelve weeks of FMLA leave entitlement occurs will be a “rolling” twelve month period measured backward from the date a staff member uses any FMLA leave.

POLICY GUIDE

- d. Pursuant to 29 CFR §825.201, a husband and wife both employed by the Board are limited to a combined total of twelve weeks of FMLA leave during the twelve month period if the FMLA leave is taken for the birth of a son or daughter of a staff member or to care for such son or daughter after birth; for placement of a son or daughter with a staff member for adoption or foster care or in order to care for the son or daughter after placement; or to care for a staff member's parent with a serious health condition.
4. Types of FMLA leave
- a. Continuous FMLA leave is taken by staff members for a continuous period of time. Such FMLA leave is not broken up by a period of work and is continuous when a staff member is absent for three consecutive working days or more. Continuous FMLA leave may be taken for any qualifying reason.
 - b. Intermittent FMLA leave is FMLA leave taken in separate blocks of time due to a single qualifying reason. A reduced FMLA leave schedule is a FMLA leave schedule that reduces a staff member's usual number of working hours per workweek, or hours per workday. A reduced FMLA leave schedule is a change in a staff member's schedule for a period of time, normally from full-time to part-time.
 - (1) Intermittent or reduced FMLA leave may be taken for the following qualifying reasons:
 - (a) For the serious health condition of the staff member or to care for a parent, son, or daughter with a serious health condition.
 - (i) For intermittent FMLA leave or FMLA leave on a reduced FMLA leave schedule taken for the reason outlined in B.4.b.(1)(a) above there must be a medical need for FMLA leave and it must be that such medical need can be best accommodated through an intermittent or reduced FMLA leave schedule.

POLICY GUIDE

- (ii) The treatment regimen and other information described in the certification of a serious health condition and in the certification of a serious injury or illness, shall address the medical necessity of intermittent FMLA leave or FMLA leave on a reduced FMLA leave schedule.
 - (iii) Intermittent FMLA leave may be taken for a serious health condition of a parent, son, or daughter, for a staff member's own serious health condition, which requires treatment by a health care provider periodically, rather than for one continuous period of time, and may include FMLA leave of periods from an hour or more to several weeks.
- (b) For planned and/or unanticipated medical treatment of a serious health condition when medically necessary.
- (c) To provide care or psychological comfort to a covered family member with a serious health condition when medically necessary.
- (d) For absences where a staff member or family member is incapacitated or unable to perform the essential functions of the position because of a chronic serious health condition even if he or she does not receive treatment by a health care provider.
- (e) For FMLA leave taken after the birth of a healthy child or placement of a healthy child for adoption or foster care, only if the Board agrees.
 - (i) The Board's agreement is not required; however, for FMLA leave during which the mother has a serious health condition in connection with the birth of her child or if the

POLICY GUIDE

newborn child has a serious health condition.

- (2) If a staff member needs FMLA leave intermittently or on a reduced FMLA leave schedule for planned medical treatment, then a staff member must make a reasonable effort to schedule the treatment so as not to disrupt unduly the Board's operations.
- (3) When a staff member takes FMLA leave on an intermittent or reduced FMLA leave schedule basis, the Board must account for the FMLA leave using an increment no greater than the shortest period of time that the Board uses to account for use of other forms of leave provided that it is not greater than one hour and provided further that a staff member's FMLA leave entitlement may not be reduced by more than the amount of FMLA leave actually taken.
 - (a) If the Board accounts for use of leave in varying increments at different times of the day or shift, the Board may not account for FMLA leave in a larger increment than the shortest period used to account for other leave during the period in which the FMLA leave is taken.
 - (b) If the Board accounts for other forms of leave use in increments greater than one hour, the Board must account for FMLA leave use in increments no greater than one hour.

5. Staff Member Notice Requirements

- a. A staff member eligible for FMLA leave must give at least a thirty day written advance notice to the Superintendent or designee if the need for the FMLA leave is foreseeable based on an expected birth, placement for adoption or foster care, or planned medical treatment for a serious health condition of a staff member or a family member.
 - (1) If thirty days is not practical, a staff member must provide notice "as soon as practicable" which means as soon as both possible and practical, taking into

POLICY GUIDE

account all the facts and circumstances in the individual case.

- (2) Where it is not possible to give as much as thirty days' notice, "as soon as practical" ordinarily would mean at least verbal notification to the Superintendent or designee within one or two business days or when the need for FMLA leave becomes known to a staff member.
- (3) The written notice shall include the reasons for the FMLA leave, the anticipated duration of the FMLA leave, and the anticipated start of the FMLA leave.
- (4) When planning medical treatment, a staff member must consult with the Superintendent or designee and make a reasonable effort to schedule the FMLA leave so as not to unduly disrupt the educational program, subject to the approval of the health care provider.
 - (a) Staff members are ordinarily expected to consult with the Superintendent or designee prior to scheduling of treatment that would require FMLA leave for a schedule that best suits the needs of the Board and a staff member.
- (5) Intermittent FMLA leave or FMLA leave on a reduced FMLA leave schedule must be medically necessary due to a serious health condition or a serious injury or illness. A staff member shall advise the Board of the reasons why the intermittent/reduced FMLA leave schedule is necessary and of the schedule for treatment, if applicable.
 - (a) A staff member and the Board shall attempt to work out a schedule for such FMLA leave that meets a staff member's needs without unduly disrupting the Board's operations, subject to the approval of the health care provider.

POLICY GUIDE

- (6) Where a staff member does not comply with the Board's usual notice and procedural requirements, and no unusual circumstances justify the failure to comply, FMLA-protected leave may be delayed or denied.
 - b. When the approximate timing of the need for FMLA leave is not foreseeable, a staff member should give notice to the Superintendent or designee for FMLA leave as soon as practicable under the facts and circumstances of the particular case.
 - (1) It is expected a staff member will give notice to the Superintendent or designee within no more than one or two business days of learning of the need for FMLA leave, except in extraordinary circumstances where such notice is not foreseeable.
 - (2) A staff member should provide notice to the Board either in person, by telephone, telegraph, fax machine, email, or other electronic means.
- 6. Outside Employment During FMLA Leave
 - a. A staff member during any period of FMLA leave is prohibited from performing any services on a full-time basis for any person for whom a staff member did not provide services immediately prior to commencement of the FMLA leave.
 - (1) A staff member using FMLA leave may commence part-time employment that shall not exceed half the regularly scheduled hours worked for the Board.
 - (2) A staff member may continue the part-time employment that commenced prior to the FMLA leave at the same number of hours that a staff member was regularly scheduled prior to such FMLA leave.
- 7. "Instructional Employees" Exceptions for FMLA Leave
 - a. "Instructional Employees" are those staff members whose principal function is to teach and instruct students in class, a small group, or in an individual setting. This term includes

POLICY GUIDE

teachers, athletic coaches, driving instructors, and special education assistants, such as signers for the hearing impaired.

- (1) Teacher assistants or aides who do not have as their principal job actual teaching or instructing, guidance counselors, child study team members, curriculum specialists, cafeteria workers, maintenance workers, and/or bus drivers are not considered instructional staff members for the purposes of this Policy.
 - (2) For purposes of this Policy "Instructional Employees" shall be referred to as "Instructional Staff Members".
- b. "Semester" means the school semester that typically ends near the end of the calendar year and the end of the spring each school year. The Board can have no more than two semesters in a school year.
 - c. FMLA leave taken at the end of the school year and continues into the beginning of the next school year is considered consecutive FMLA leave.
 - d. Eligible instructional staff members that need intermittent or reduced FMLA leave to care for a family member or for a staff member's own serious health condition which is foreseeable based on planned medical treatment and would be on FMLA leave more than twenty percent of the total number of working days over the period the FMLA leave would extend, the Board may:
 - (1) Require a staff member to take the FMLA leave for a period or periods of a particular duration, not greater than the duration of the planned treatment; or
 - (2) Transfer a staff member temporarily to an available alternative position for which a staff member is qualified, which has equivalent pay and benefits and which better accommodates recurring periods of FMLA leave than does a staff member's regular position.
 - e. If the instructional staff member does not give the required notice for FMLA leave that is foreseeable and desires the

POLICY GUIDE

FMLA leave to be taken intermittently or on a reduced FMLA leave schedule, the Board may require a staff member to take FMLA leave of a particular duration, or to transfer temporarily to an alternative position. Alternatively, the Board may require a staff member to delay taking the FMLA leave until the notice provision is met.

- f. If an instructional staff member begins FMLA leave more than five weeks before the end of the school year, the Board may require a staff member to continue taking FMLA leave until the end of the semester if:
 - (1) The FMLA leave will last three weeks; and
 - (2) A staff member would return to work during the three-week period before the end of the semester.
- g. If an instructional staff member begins FMLA leave for a purpose other than a staff member's own serious health condition during the five week period before the end of the semester, the Board may require a staff member to continue taking FMLA leave until the end of the semester if:
 - (1) The FMLA leave will last more than two weeks; and
 - (2) The staff member would return to work during the two week period before the end of the semester.
- h. If an instructional staff member begins FMLA leave for a purpose other than a staff member's own serious health condition during the three week period before the end of a semester, the Board may require a staff member to continue taking FMLA leave until the end of the semester if the FMLA leave will last more than five working days.
- i. An example of FMLA leave falling within the situations outlines in B.7.f., B.7.g., and B.7.h. above:
 - (1) If a staff member plans two weeks of FMLA leave to care for a family member which will begin three weeks before the end of the term, the Board could require a staff member to stay out on FMLA leave until the end of the term.

POLICY GUIDE

- j. In the case of a staff member who is required to take FMLA leave until the end of an academic term, only the period of FMLA leave until a staff member is ready and able to return to work shall be charged against a staff member's FMLA leave entitlement.
- k. The Board may require a staff member to stay on FMLA leave until the end of the school term. Any additional leave required by the Board to the end of the school term is not counted as FMLA leave; however:
 - (1) The Board shall be required to maintain a staff member's group health insurance; and
 - (2) The Board shall be required to restore a staff member to the same or equivalent job including other benefits at the conclusion of the leave.

8. FMLA Leave Related to Military Service

- a. Definitions for FMLA related to military service shall be in accordance with 29 CFR §§825.122; .126; .127; and .310.
- b. The foreign deployment of the staff member's spouse, child, or parent in accordance with 29 CFR §§825.122 and .126:
 - (1) The district must grant an eligible staff member up to twelve work weeks of unpaid, job-protected FMLA leave during any twelve month period for qualifying exigencies that arise when the staff member's spouse, child, or parent is on covered active duty, or has been notified of an impending call or order to covered active duty.
- c. Military caregiver FMLA leave provides care for a covered servicemember with a serious injury or illness in accordance with 29 CFR §§825.122 and .127:
 - (1) The district must grant up to a total of twenty-six workweeks of unpaid, job-protected FMLA leave during a "single twelve month period" to care for a covered servicemember with a serious injury or illness.

9. Verification

POLICY GUIDE

- a. The Board shall require that a staff member's FMLA leave to care for a staff member's covered family member with a serious health condition, or due to a staff member's own serious health condition that makes a staff member unable to perform one or more of the essential functions of a staff member's position, be supported by a certification issued by the health care provider of a staff member or a staff member's family member.
 - (1) The Board must give written notice of a requirement for certification each time a certification is required. The Board's oral request to a staff member to furnish any subsequent certification is sufficient.
- b. The Board shall require a staff member furnish certification at the time a staff member gives notice of the need for FMLA leave or within five business days thereafter, or, in the case of unforeseen FMLA leave, within five business days after the FMLA leave commences.
 - (1) The Board may request certification at some later date if the Board later has reason to question the appropriateness of the FMLA leave or its duration.
 - (2) A staff member must provide the requested certification to the Board within fifteen calendar days after the Board's request, unless it is not practicable under the particular circumstances to do so despite a staff member's diligent, good faith efforts or the Board provides more than fifteen calendar days to return the requested certification.
- c. When FMLA leave is taken because of a staff member's own serious health condition, or the serious health condition of a family member, the Board shall require a staff member to obtain a medical certification from a health care provider that sets forth the following information:
 - (1) The name, address, telephone number, and fax number of the health care provider and type of medical practice/specialization;
 - (2) The approximate date on which the serious health condition commenced, and its probable duration;

POLICY GUIDE

- (3) A statement or description of appropriate medical facts regarding the patient's health condition for which FMLA leave is requested. The medical facts must be sufficient to support the need for FMLA leave.
 - (a) Such medical facts may include information on symptoms, diagnosis, hospitalization, doctor visits, whether medication has been prescribed, any referrals for evaluation or treatment (physical therapy, for example), or any other regimen of continuing treatment;
- (4) If a staff member is the patient, information sufficient to establish that a staff member cannot perform the essential functions of a staff member's job as well as the nature of any other work restrictions, and the likely duration of such inability;
- (5) If the patient is a covered family member with a serious health condition, information sufficient to establish that the family member is in need of care, and an estimate of the frequency and duration of the FMLA leave required to care for the family member;
- (6) If a staff member requests FMLA leave on an intermittent or reduced schedule basis for planned medical treatment of a staff member's or a covered family member's serious health condition, information sufficient to establish the medical necessity for such intermittent or reduced schedule FMLA leave and an estimate of the dates and duration of such treatments and any periods of recovery;
- (7) If a staff member requests FMLA leave on an intermittent or reduced schedule basis for a staff member's serious health condition, including pregnancy, that may result in unforeseeable episodes of incapacity, information sufficient to establish the medical necessity for such intermittent or reduced schedule FMLA leave and an estimate of the frequency and duration of the episodes of incapacity; and

POLICY GUIDE

- (8) If a staff member requests FMLA leave on an intermittent or reduced schedule basis to care for a covered family member with a serious health condition, a statement that such FMLA leave is medically necessary to care for the family member, which can include assisting in the family member's recovery, and an estimate of the frequency and duration of the required FMLA leave.
 - d. A staff member may choose to comply with the certification requirement by providing the Board with an authorization, release, or waiver allowing the Board to communicate directly with the health care provider of a staff member or his or her covered family member.
 - (1) It is a staff member's responsibility to provide the Board with complete and sufficient certification and failure to do so may result in the denial of FMLA leave.
 - e. If the Board has reason to doubt the validity of a medical certification, the Board may require a staff member to obtain a second opinion at the Board's expense.
 - (1) The Board may designate the health care provider to furnish the second opinion, but the selected health care provider may not be employed on a regular basis by the Board.
 - f. If the opinions of a staff member's and the Board's designated health care providers differ, the Board may require a staff member to obtain certification from a third health care provider, again at the Board's expense. This third opinion shall be final and binding. The third health care provider must be designated or approved jointly by the Board and the staff member.
10. Reinstatement Following FMLA Leave
- a. On return from FMLA leave a staff member is entitled to be returned to the same position a staff member held when FMLA leave commenced, or to an equivalent position with equivalent benefits, pay, and other terms and conditions of employment.

POLICY GUIDE

- (1) A staff member is entitled to such reinstatement even if a staff member has been replaced or his or her position has been restructured to accommodate for a staff member's absence.
 - (2) The requirement that a staff member be restored to the same or equivalent job with the same or equivalent pay, benefits, and terms and conditions of employment does not extend to de minimis, intangible, or unmeasurable aspects of the job.
- b. Denial of Reinstatement
- (1) A staff member has no greater right to reinstatement or to other benefits and conditions of employment than if a staff member had been continuously employed during the FMLA leave period.
 - (a) The Board must be able to show that a staff member would not otherwise have been employed at the time reinstatement is requested in order to deny restoration to employment.
 - (2) The Board may deny job restoration to "key employees", if such denial is necessary to prevent substantial and grievous economic injury to the operations of the Board.
 - (a) A "key employee" is a salaried FMLA-eligible staff member who is among the highest paid ten percent of all staff members employed by the Board within seventy-five miles of a staff member's worksite.
 - (3) If a staff member is unable to perform an essential function of the position because of a physical or mental condition, including the continuation of a serious health condition or an injury or illness also covered by workers' compensation, a staff member has no right to restoration to another position under the FMLA.
 - (a) The Board's obligation may; however, be

POLICY GUIDE

governed by the Americans with Disabilities Act, State leave law, or workers' compensation laws.

- (4) A staff member who fraudulently obtains FMLA leave from the Board is not protected by FMLA's job restoration or maintenance of health benefits provisions.

- c. Intent to Return to Work

- (1) The Board may require a staff member on FMLA leave to report periodically on a staff member's status and intent to return to work.

- d. Fitness for Duty Certification

- (1) As a condition of restoring a staff member whose FMLA leave was a result of a staff member's own serious health condition that made a staff member unable to perform a staff member's job, the Board shall require all similarly-situated staff members (i.e., same occupation, same serious health condition) who take FMLA leave for such conditions to obtain and present certification from a staff member's health care provider that a staff member is able to resume work.
 - (2) A staff member has the same obligations to participate and cooperate in the fitness-for-duty certification process as in the initial certification process.

- 11. The Board of Education Notice

- a. Notice of Staff Member Rights Under FMLA

- (1) The Board shall post and keep posted on its premises, in conspicuous places where staff members are employed, a notice explaining the FMLA's provisions and providing information concerning the procedures for filing complaints of violations of the FMLA with the Wage and Hour Division.

POLICY GUIDE

- (a) The notice will be posted prominently where it can be readily seen by staff members and applicants for employment.
 - (b) The poster and the text will be large enough to be easily read and contain fully legible text.
 - (c) Electronic posting is sufficient to meet this posting requirement as long as it otherwise meets the requirements of B.11.
- (2) The Board shall also provide this general notice to each staff member by including the notice in staff members' handbooks or other written guidance to staff members concerning staff member benefits or FMLA leave rights, if such written materials exist, or by distributing a copy of the general notice to each new staff member upon hiring. In either case, distribution may be accomplished electronically.
- (3) Access to and/or distribution of this Policy shall serve as school district notice to staff members of their rights pursuant to 29 CFR §825 et seq.
- b. Eligibility Notice
 - (1) When a staff member requests FMLA leave, or when the Board acquires knowledge that a staff member's FMLA leave may be for an FMLA-qualifying reason, the Board must notify the staff member of the staff member's eligibility to take FMLA leave within five business days, absent extenuating circumstances.
- c. Designation Notice
 - (1) The Board is responsible in all circumstances for designating leave as FMLA-qualifying, and for giving notice of the designation to a staff member. The Board must notify a staff member whether the leave will be designated and will be counted as FMLA leave within five business days absent extenuating circumstances.

POLICY GUIDE

- (2) If the Board requires paid leave to be substituted for unpaid FMLA leave, or that paid leave taken under an existing leave plan be counted as FMLA leave, the Board must inform a staff member of this designation at the time of designating the FMLA leave.

12. Local Board of Education Practices

a. Substitution of Paid Leave

- (1) Whether a staff member is required to use sick time or any other accrued leave time concurrent with FMLA leave time will depend upon either the district's practice or a provision in the district's collective bargaining agreement, if applicable.

b. Maintenance of Staff Member Benefits

- (1) The Board must maintain a staff member's coverage under any group health plan on the same conditions as coverage would have been provided if a staff member had been continuously employed during the entire FMLA leave period.

C. Shared Provisions

1. Interference with Family Leave Rights

The NJFLA and the FMLA prohibit interference with a staff member's rights under the law, and with legal proceedings or inquiries relating to a staff member's rights. Unless permitted by the law, no staff member shall be required to take family leave or to extend family leave beyond the time requested. A staff member shall not be discriminated against for having exercised his/her rights under the NJFLA and the FMLA nor discouraged from the use of family leave.

2. Non-Tenured Teaching Staff

Family leave granted to a nontenured staff member cannot extend a staff member's employment beyond the expiration of his/her employment contract.

3. Record Keeping

POLICY GUIDE

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure the keeping of accurate attendance records that distinguish family leave from other kinds of leave so a staff member's entitlement to NJFLA leave and FMLA leave can be properly determined.

4. Processing of Complaints

a. New Jersey Family Leave Act

- (1) Any complaint alleging a violation of the NJFLA shall be processed in the same manner as a complaint filed under the terms of N.J.S.A. 10:5-1 et seq. and N.J.A.C. 13:4 through the New Jersey Department of Law and Public Safety, Division on Civil Rights.

b. Federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA)

- (1) If there is a dispute between the Board and a staff member as to whether leave qualifies as FMLA leave, it should be resolved through discussion between the staff member and the Superintendent or designee. Such discussions and the decision shall be documented by the Superintendent or designee.
- (2) A staff member also may file, or have another person file on his/her behalf, a complaint with the United States Secretary of Labor. A complaint may be filed in person, by mail, or by telephone with the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, at any local office of the Wage and Hour Division.
- (3) This Policy 1643 shall be posted on the school district website, in a manner accessible to all staff members and a hard copy shall be provided to all staff members annually prior to the beginning of the school year and upon initial employment in the school district during the school year.

29 CFR §825 et seq.
29 CFR §785
N.J.S.A. 10:5-1;
N.J.S.A. 34:11B et seq.

POLICY GUIDE

N.J.A.C. 13:14-1 et seq.

Adopted:

POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

DRAFT

Program
2415.02/Page 1 of 2

TITLE I – FISCAL RESPONSIBILITIES (M)

2415.02 TITLE I – FISCAL RESPONSIBILITIES (M)

M

TITLE I – FISCAL RESPONSIBILITIES (M)

2415.02

M

The ~~Upper Saddle River~~ Board of Education will comply with the requirements of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 2701 et seq.) as amended by the ~~No Child Left Behind~~ Every Student Succeeds Act of 2001 (ESSA).

-

Maintenance of Effort

-

To be in compliance with the requirements of the ~~ESEA~~ Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 2701 et seq.) as amended by the ~~No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, §1120A(a), ESSA~~, the ~~Upper Saddle River~~ Board of Education will maintain either a combined fiscal effort per pupil, student or aggregate expenditures; of State and local funds with respect to the provision of the free public education ~~in~~ by the Local Education Agency (LEA) for the preceding fiscal year that is not less than ninety percent of the combined fiscal effort per pupil, student or the aggregate expenditures; for the second preceding fiscal year.

-

Comparability with Multiple Schools

-

To be in compliance with the requirements of the ~~Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 2701 et seq.)~~ ESEA as amended by the ~~No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, §1120A(e), ESSA~~, the ~~Upper Saddle River~~ Board of Education directs the Superintendent to assign teachers, administrators, and auxiliary personnel to the schools in such a way that the equivalence of personnel is ensured among schools. The school district will ensure that State and local funds are used to provide comparable services for Title I and non-Title I schools.

-

Comparability of Materials and Supplies

-

To be in compliance with the requirements of the ~~Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 2701 et seq.)~~ ESEA as amended by the ~~No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, §1120A(e), ESSA~~, the ~~Upper Saddle River~~ Board of Education directs the



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

Program

2415.02/Page 2 of 2

TITLE I – FISCAL RESPONSIBILITIES (M)

Superintendent to distribute curriculum materials and instructional supplies to the schools in such a way that the equivalence of such material is ensured among schools.

Supplement, Not Supplant

Grant funds provided under Federal programs, including the ESEA as amended by the ESSA, shall supplement, not supplant the funds that would, in the absence of such Federal funds, be made available from State and local sources for the education of students participating in programs assisted under the ESEA as amended by the ESSA.

Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 2701 et seq.)-

-

No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, §1120A

-

-

as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act.

Adopted: 19 May 2008

Revised:

-

-



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

DRAFT

Program
2415.05/Page 1 of 3
STUDENT SURVEYS, ANALYSIS AND/OR EVALUATIONS (M)

2415.05 STUDENT SURVEYS, ANALYSIS AND/OR EVALUATIONS (M)

M

The Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment (PPRA) (20 U.S.C. §1232h; 34 CFR Part 98) applies to school districts that receive funding from the United States Department of Education.

Consent

PPRA requires written consent from parents/~~legal guardians of unemancipated minor students~~ and ~~pupils~~students who are eighteen years old or emancipated minor ~~pupils~~students before ~~minor pupils~~such students are required to participate in a survey, analysis, or evaluation funded in whole or in part by a program of the United States Department of Education that concerns one or more of the following ~~eight~~-areas referred to as "protected information surveys":

1. ~~_____~~ Political affiliations or beliefs of the ~~pupil~~student or ~~pupil's~~student's parent;
2. ~~_____~~ Mental or psychological problems of the ~~pupil~~student or ~~pupil's~~student's family;
3. ~~_____~~ Sex behavior or attitudes;
4. ~~_____~~ Illegal, anti-social, self-incriminating or demeaning behavior;
5. ~~_____~~ Critical appraisals of others with whom respondents have close family relationships;
6. ~~_____~~ Legally recognized privileged or analogous relationships, such as with lawyers, physicians, and ministers;
7. ~~_____~~ Religious practices, affiliations, or beliefs of the ~~pupil~~student or parents; ~~or~~
8. ~~_____~~ Income (other than that required by law to determine eligibility for participation in a program or for receiving financial assistance under such program) ~~); or~~

9. Social security number.

POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

Program

2415.05/Page 2 of 3

STUDENT SURVEYS, ANALYSIS AND/OR EVALUATIONS (M)

This consent requirement also applies to the collection, disclosure or use of pupilstudent information for marketing purposes, referred to as "marketing surveys", and for certain physical examinations and screenings.

"Opt a PupilStudent Out" Notice

The parents of unemancipated minor students and eligible pupilsstudents who are eighteen years old or emancipated minor students will be provided an opportunity to opt a pupil out of participating in:

1. — The collection, disclosure, or use of personal information obtained from pupilsstudents for marketing, to sell, or otherwise distribute information to others;
2. — The administration of any other "protected information survey" not funded in whole or in part by the United States Department of Education; and
3. — Any non-emergency, invasive physical examination required as a condition of attendance, administered by the school district or its agents, and not necessary to protect the immediate health and safety of a pupilstudent, except for hearing, vision, scoliosis screenings, or any physical examination or screening permitted or required under State law.

Inspection

The parents of unemancipated minor students and eligible pupilsstudents who are eighteen years old or emancipated minor students, upon request and before administration or use, have the right to inspect:

1. — Protected information surveys of pupilsstudents;
2. — Instruments used to collect personal information from pupilsstudents for any of the above marketing, sales, or other distribution purposes; and
3. — Instructional material used as part of the educational curriculum.

The Supervisor of Special Education Superintendent or designee shall be responsible for obtaining the consent, annual direct notification to parents and eligible pupilsstudents at the start of each school year and after any substantive changes of the "opt a pupilstudent out" rights, and the inspection rights provisions of PPRA and this Policy.— The "opt a



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

Program

2415.05/Page 3 of 3

STUDENT SURVEYS, ANALYSIS AND/OR EVALUATIONS (M)

~~pupil~~student out” notice shall include any specific or approximate dates of the activities eligible for a ~~pupil~~student to “opt out.”

-

PPRA Consent/Opt Out Violations

-

Parents or ~~pupils~~students who believe their rights under PPRA may have been violated may file a complaint with United States Department of Education.

-

-

The Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment (PPRA)
(20 U.S.C. §1232h; 34 CFR Part 98)

~~No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, Title X, Part F, §1061~~

-

-

Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 2701 et seq.) as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act.

Adopted: 19 May 2008

-

-

-



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

DRAFT

Program
2415.20/Page 1 of 3
NO CHILD LEFT BEHIND COMPLAINTS (M)

2415.20 NO CHILD LEFT BEHIND COMPLAINTS (M)

M

~~Pursuant to EVERY STUDENT SUCCEEDS ACT COMPLAINTS (M)~~

~~2415.20 USC 7844, Sec 9304 (a)(3)(C), of the No Child Left Behind~~

M

~~The Every Student Succeeds Act of 2001 (NCLB), a(ESSA) reauthorized the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (ESEA). A Board of Education shall adopt a policy and written procedures that offer parent(s) for resolving a written complaint presented by an individual or legal guardian(s), public agencies, other individuals, or organizations a method for receipt and resolution of complaints alleging organization that alleges~~ violations in the administration of the NCLBESSA programs as identified by the New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE).

Policy and Regulation 2415.20 set forth the requirements for resolving complaints presented by any individual or organization that:

1. ~~—~~ A school, school district, other agency authorized by the school district, or by the NJDOE violated the administration of education programs ~~required~~ authorized by the ~~Elementary and Secondary Education Act ESEA~~ as amended by ~~NCLB~~ the ESSA; and/or
2. ~~—~~ The NJDOE violated the administration of education programs required by the ~~Elementary and Secondary Education Act ESEA~~ as amended by ~~NCLB~~ the ESSA.

Complaints regarding nonpublic school officials alleging school district noncompliance must pertain to at least one of the following three specific reasons:

1. The school district did not engage in consultation that was meaningful and timely;
2. The school district did not give due consideration to the views of the nonpublic school officials; or



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

Program

2415.20/Page 2 of 3

NO CHILD LEFT BEHIND COMPLAINTS (M)

3. The school district did not make a decision that treats the nonpublic school or its students equitable and in accordance with ESEA Section 1117 or Section 8501.

A ~~Complaint~~complaint shall be a written ~~allegation that shall and must~~ identify, at a minimum, the alleged ~~NCLB~~ESEA violation; a description of previous steps taken to resolve the matter; the facts supporting the alleged violation; as understood by the complainant at the time of submission; and any supporting documentation.

A ~~Complaint~~complaint alleging a school in the district, school district, or other agency authorized by the school district, or the NJDOE violated the administration of a program must be submitted to the Curriculum Coordinator. Curriculum Coordinator shall be responsible to coordinate the investigation of the Complaint. The Curriculum Coordinator shall submit a written report regarding the outcome of the investigation to the complainant.

If the complainant is not satisfied with the outcome of the investigation by the school district, the complainant ~~may initiate a Complaint by submitting~~must submit a written ~~Complaint to the NJDOE to the attention of the County Superintendent. The County Superintendent~~complaint to the Executive County Superintendent for the county where the school district is located. This process does not apply to alleged violations concerning participation of nonpublic school children.

The Executive County Superintendent will coordinate the investigation of a ~~Complaint~~complaint. When the investigation is complete, the ~~County Superintendent~~Executive County Superintendent will notify the complainant in writing regarding the outcome of the investigation. If it is determined a violation has occurred, the Executive County Superintendent will identify and impose the appropriate consequences or corrective action in accordance with statute and/or regulation to resolve the complaint. If the complainant is not satisfied with the determination that is made by the Executive County Superintendent, the complainant may submit a written request for review of that determination to the Assistant Commissioner assigned to oversee the matter shall identify and impose appropriate consequences or corrective actions as required by regulation to resolve the Complaint. If the complainant does not agree with the NJDOE's decision, the complainant may appeal to the United States Department of Education Secretary.

A ~~Complaint~~complaint alleging the NJDOE violated the administration of a program must be submitted to the designated New Jersey Department of Education ~~Chief of Staff or the United States Department of Education Secretary. Assistant Commissioner.~~ The NJDOE ~~requests the complainant first contact the New Jersey Department of Education Chief of Staff to resolve the issue. The appropriate~~ NJDOE Office ~~of Strategic Initiatives and~~



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

Program

2415.20/Page 3 of 3

NO CHILD LEFT BEHIND COMPLAINTS (M)

Accountability assigned by the Assistant Commissioner will coordinate the investigation of a Complaint-complaint. When the investigation is complete, the Chief of Staff Assistant Commissioner will notify the complainant in writing regarding the outcome of the investigation.- If it is determined a violation has occurred, the Chief of Staff shall Assistant Commissioner will identify and impose the appropriate consequences or corrective actions as required by statute and/or regulation to resolve the Complaint-complaint.

If a complainant does not agree with the NJDOE's decision, the complainant may appeal to the Secretary of the United States Department of Education-Secretary.

To initiate a complaint regarding participation of nonpublic school children, a complainant must submit a written complaint to the NJDOE Nonpublic Ombudsman in accordance with NJDOE procedures.

New Jersey Department of Education 1/26/07 Memorandum—
No Child Left Behind Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) Complaint Policy
and Procedure

Adopted: 19 May 2008

Revised:



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

DRAFT

Support Staff
4125/Page 1 of 3

EMPLOYMENT OF SUPPORT STAFF MEMBERS (M)

4125 EMPLOYMENT OF SUPPORT STAFF MEMBERS (M)

M

The Board of Education believes it is vital to the successful operation of the school district that support staff member positions be filled with highly qualified and competent professionals.

- In accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:27-4.1, the Board shall appoint, transfer, remove, or renew a certificated or non-certificated officer or employee only upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and by a recorded roll call majority vote of the full membership of the Board. ~~__~~ The Board shall not withhold its approval for arbitrary and capricious reasons. ~~__~~ The Board shall approve the employment, fix the compensation, and establish the term of employment for every support staff member employed by this district.

- The Board ~~will may~~ employ substitutes and/or contract for substitutes for absent support staff members in order to ensure continuity in a program ~~and~~. The Board will annually approve a list of substitutes and rate of pay. ~~The Superintendent or designee shall select substitutes from and/or the list approved by the Board to serve in the place of an absent support staff member.~~

- ~~The Board may use~~ Board will approve a ~~private contractor to secure contract for~~ a contracted service provider to provide substitute support staff ~~member. members.~~

- The Board of Education shall not employ for pay or contract for the paid services of any support staff member or any other person serving in a position which involves regular contact with students unless the Board has first determined consistent with the requirements and standards of N.J.S.A. 18A:6-7.1 et seq. that no criminal history record information exists on file in the Federal Bureau of Investigation, Identification Division, or the State Bureau of Identification which would disqualify the individual from being employed or utilized in such capacity or position. ~~-~~

- An individual employed by the Board or a school bus contractor holding a contract with the Board, in the capacity of a school bus driver, shall be required to meet the criminal history record requirements as outlined in N.J.S.A. 18A:39-19.1.

- The Board will employ paraprofessional school aides and/or classroom aides to assist in the supervision of student activities under the direction of a Principal, teacher, or other designated certified professional personnel. ~~__~~ Aides will serve the needs of students by



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

Support Staff
4125/Page 2 of 3

EMPLOYMENT OF SUPPORT STAFF MEMBERS (M)

performing nonprofessional duties and may work only under the direct supervision of a teaching staff member(s).

In accordance with the requirements of ~~No Child Left Behind~~ the Every Student Succeeds Act of 2001, (ESSA), paraprofessionals hired after January 8, 2002, who work in a program supported with Title I, Part A funds, with certain exceptions, must meet one of the following criteria:

1. ~~Completed~~ Completed at least two years of study at an institution of higher education;
2. ~~Obtained~~ Obtained an associate's (or higher) degree; or
3. ~~Met~~ Met a rigorous standard of quality and be able to demonstrate, through a formal State or local academic assessment, knowledge of and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, writing, and mathematics (or, as appropriate, reading readiness, writing readiness, and mathematics readiness).

Paraprofessional staff working in a Title I school, and whose salary is paid for in whole or in part with Title I funds, must ~~have met~~ meet one of the criteria listed above ~~by the end of the 2005-2006 school year.~~ The Superintendent or designee will ensure paraprofessionals working in a program supported with Title I funds meet the above stated requirements.

An individual employed by the Board in any substitute capacity or position shall be required to undergo a criminal history record check in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:6-7.1b.

An individual, except as provided in N.J.S.A. 18A:6-7.1g, shall be permanently disqualified from employment or service in the school district if the criminal history record check reveals a record of conviction for any crime or offense as defined in N.J.S.A. 18A:6-7.1 et seq.

The Board or contracted service provider may employ an applicant on an emergent basis for a period not to exceed three months, pending completion of a criminal history record check if the Board or contracted service provider demonstrates to the Commissioner of Education that special circumstances exist which justify the emergent employment as prescribed in N.J.S.A. 18A:6-7.1c. ~~In the event the criminal history record check is not completed for an emergent hired employee within three months, the Board or contracted service provider may petition the Commissioner for an extension of time, not to exceed two months, in order to retain the employee.~~



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

Support Staff
4125/Page 3 of 3

EMPLOYMENT OF SUPPORT STAFF MEMBERS (M)

No criminal history record check shall be performed unless the applicant shall have furnished written consent to such a check. - The applicant shall bear the cost for the criminal history record check, including all costs for administering and processing the check. - The district will deny employment to an applicant if the applicant is required and refuses to submit to a criminal history record check.

-
The Board of Education prohibits any relative of a Board member or the Superintendent of Schools from being employed in an office or position in the school district in accordance with the provisions of N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-6.2 and Board Policy 0142.1 – Nepotism.

-
A support staff member's misstatement of fact material to his/her qualifications for employment or the determination of his/her salary will be considered by the Board to constitute grounds for dismissal.

-
N.J.S.A. 18A:6-5; 18A:6-6; 18A:6-7.1; 18A:6-7.1b;
18A:6-7.1c; 18A:6-7.2;
18A:16-1 et seq.;
18A:26-1 et seq.;
18A:27-1 et seq.; 18A:27-4.1;
18A:27-7; 18A:27-8; 18A:39-19.1

-
Adopted: 19 May 2008

Revised: 16 June 2014

Revised:



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

DRAFT

Students
5330.01/Page 1 of 2

ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA (M)

5330.01 ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA (M)

M

The Board of Education, in accordance with the requirements of N.J.S.A. 18A:40-12.22, must adopt a Policy authorizing parents, ~~guardians,~~ and ~~primary caregivers~~ designated caregiver(s) to administer medical marijuanacannabis to a qualifying student patient while on school grounds, aboard a school bus, or attending a school-sponsored event. ~~The parent of a qualifying student patient requesting the administration of medical marijuanacannabis to the student while on school grounds, aboard a school bus, or attending a school-sponsored event must comply with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:40-12.22 and N.J.S.A. 24:6I-1 et seq. and Policy and Regulation 5330.01.~~

~~A student enrolled in the school district must be authorized to engage in the medical use of marijuanacannabis pursuant to N.J.S.A. 24:6I-1 et seq. and the primary caregiver, who may bethat the parent, must or designated caregiver(s) be authorized to administer medical marijuana to a qualifying assist the student patient in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:40-12.22 and medical use of cannabis pursuant to N.J.S.A. 24:6I-1 et seq. The student and the primary designated caregiver(s) must complete the registration process to obtain a Registry Identification Card from the New Jersey Department of Health with the Cannabis Regulatory Commission in accordance with the requirements of N.J.S.A. 24:6I-4.~~

~~The parent of the student authorized to engage in the medical use of marijuanacannabis must submit a written request with supporting documentation to the Principal requesting approval to have a primary designated caregiver(s) assist in the administration of medical marijuanacannabis to the qualifying student patient while on school grounds, aboard a school bus, or attending a school-sponsored event. The Principal, in consultation with the school nurse, the school physician, and the Superintendent of Schools, will review each request and upon approval will inform the parent in writing of the approval with details for the administration of medical marijuanacannabis to the qualifying student patient. The medical use of marijuanacannabis by a qualifying student patient while on school grounds, aboard a school bus, or attending a school-sponsored event will only be authorized after the written approval from the Principal is provided to the parent.~~

~~Medical marijuanacannabis may only be administered to the qualifying student patient while the student is on school grounds, aboard a school bus, or attending a school-sponsored event by the primary designated caregiver(s) in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:40-12.22 and N.J.S.A. 24:6I-1 et seq. The prescribed medical marijuanacannabis must be in the possession of the primary designated caregiver(s) at all times, except during the administration process. The primary designated caregiver(s) shall~~



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

Students

5330.01/Page 2 of 2

ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA (M)

comply with the requirements of the Principal's written approval for the administration of medical marijuanacannabis to the qualifying student patient while on school grounds, aboard a school bus, or attending a school-sponsored event.

-
All health records related to the administration of medical marijuanacannabis to a qualifying student patient while on school grounds, aboard a school bus, or attending a school-sponsored event shall be maintained in accordance with the requirements of N.J.A.C. 6A:16-2.4 and N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.4.

-
No person shall be subject to arrest or prosecution for constructive possession, conspiracy, or any other offense for simply being in the presence or vicinity of the medical use of marijuanacannabis as authorized under N.J.S.A. 24:6I-1 et seq. or N.J.S.A. 18A:40-12.22.- No custodial parent, ~~guardian~~, or person who has legal custody of a qualifying student patient who is a minor shall be subject to arrest or prosecution for constructive possession, conspiracy, or any other offense for assisting the minor in the medical use of marijuana cannabis as authorized under N.J.S.A. 24:6I-1 et seq. or N.J.S.A. 18A:40-12.22.

-
N.J.S.A. 18A:40-12.22

N.J.S.A. 24:6I-1 et seq.

N.J.A.C. 6A:16-2.4; 6A:32-7.4

-
Adopted: 20 June 2016

Revised:



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

Finances

6360/Page 1 of 22

POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS (M)

DRAFT

6360 POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS (M)

M

Political Contribution Disclosure Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of Section 2 of P.L. 2005, Chapter 271 (N.J.S.A. 19:44A-20.26), the Board of Education shall have on file, to be maintained with other documents related to a contract, the following documents to award a contract to any business entity receiving a contract with an anticipated value in excess of \$17,500, regardless of the basis upon which the contract is awarded:

1. ~~—~~ A Political Contribution Disclosure (PCD) form submitted by the business entity (at least ten days prior to award); and
2. ~~—~~ A Business Registration Certificate (anytime prior to award).

“Business entity” means a for-profit entity that is a natural or legal person, business corporation, professional services corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited partnership, business trust, association or any other legal commercial entity organized under the laws of New Jersey or any other State or foreign jurisdiction.

The \$17,500 contract amount is not related to the Board’s bid threshold and does not exempt the district from the requirements of the Public School Contracts Law or other applicable purchasing statutes.

The \$17,500 contract amount threshold is subject to the principle of aggregation rules in accordance with the Division of Local Government Services guidance. ~~—~~ Unlike the Public School Contracts Law, aggregation thresholds for this Policy and Chapter 271 purposes shall be calculated at the vendor level – meaning, when a vendor receives more than \$17,500 in a school district’s fiscal year, a PCD form shall be required.

The disclosure provisions of N.J.S.A. 19:44A-20.26 do not apply in cases where there is a “public emergency” that requires the immediate delivery of goods or services.

Insurance companies and banks are prohibited under State law from making political contributions. ~~—~~ However, because the PCD form reflects contributions made by partners, Boards of Directors, spouses, etc., PCD forms are required ten days prior to the approval of a depository designation resolution or insurance company contract awarded by the Board. ~~—~~ A PCD form is also required when a contract in excess of \$17,500 is made to an



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

Finances

6360/Page 2 of 22

POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS (M)

insurance broker.- A PCD form is required from the company receiving the contract, regardless of the entity issuing an insurance policy.

-
PCD forms are required for Board of Education contracts in excess of \$17,500 with a New Jersey Department of Education "Approved In-State Private School for the Disabled."- Chapter 271 also applies to in-State private special education schools, ~~supplemental~~-educational services under NCLBany Federally funded program, early childhood school providers – DHS approved, and other similar programs.

-
If the school district spends more than \$17,500 in a school year with a newspaper, the selection of the newspaper is subject to the provisions of Chapter 271.-

-
PCD forms are not required for regulated public utility services, as the Board is required by the Board of Public Utilities to use a specific utility.- This exception does not apply to non-regulated public utility services, such as generated energy (not tarified), or long-distance telephone services where other procurement practices are used.

-
PCD forms are not required for membership to the New Jersey School Boards Association.

-
A non-profit organization having proper documentation from the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) showing it is registered with the IRS as a 501(c) type corporation is not required to file a PCD form.

-
A PCD form is not required for contracts with governmental agencies, including State colleges and universities.

-
If the original contract provided for the possibility of an extension(s), Chapter 271 compliance is not required if the extension/continuation is based on that original contract.

-
N.J.S.A. 19:44A-1 et seq.

N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-6.3

New Jersey Department of Community Affairs Local Finance Notices - 6/4/07 & 1/15/10

-
Adopted: 16 June 2008

Revised: 20 October 2008

Revised: 15 March 2010

Revised: 18 October 2010

Revised: 28 March 2011

Revised:



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

DRAFT

Property
7425/Page 1 of 2

LEAD TESTING OF WATER IN SCHOOLS

7425 LEAD TESTING OF WATER IN SCHOOLS (M)

M

The health, safety, and welfare of the children in the school district are of utmost importance to the Board of Education. - The potential exposure to lead-contaminated drinking water poses serious health problems, particularly for children, as well as for teachers and school personnel, since the risk of lead contamination can come from pipe and plumbing fixtures in school facilities or on school grounds. - The Board shall assure the availability of potable drinking water through sanitary means in school facilities or on school grounds. - The Board of Education shall provide, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4, testing for lead in all district sources of drinking water.

-

The Board shall conduct lead sampling and analysis in all drinking water outlets to which a student or staff member has, or may have, access in each school facility, other facility, or temporary facility, as soon as practicable, but no later than — July 13, 2017, unless the district qualifies for an exemption in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4(d)(h)(i)-j). This ~~testing~~ lead sampling and analysis shall be conducted with a lead sampling plan in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4(d)1, 2, and 3, and shall be in accordance with the Safe Drinking Water Act, N.J.S.A. 58:12A-1.

-

The Superintendent of Schools or designee shall complete a review of the final laboratory results within seventy-two hours of receipt. Within twenty-four hours after the ~~Board~~ Superintendent or designee has completed a review of final laboratory results in accordance with the provisions of N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4(e), the test results shall be made publicly available at the school facility and on the Board of Education's website. - If any results exceed the permissible lead action level, the Board shall provide written notification to the parents of all students attending the facility, facility staff, and the New Jersey Department of Education. - This written notification shall include: - a description of the measures taken by the ~~Board~~ Superintendent or designee to immediately end the use of each drinking water outlet where the water quality exceeded the permissible lead action level; any additional remedial action taken or planned by the Board of Education; the measures taken to ensure that alternate drinking water has been made available to all students and staff members; where the water outlet(s) is located; and information regarding the health effects of lead in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4(e)1 and 2. ~~After the initial screening, the Board will conduct these lead screenings every six years and~~

Notwithstanding the results or date of any prior testing, the Board shall continue to test drinking water outlets in the designated Statewide required testing year, which shall be every third school year beginning with the 2021-2022 school year and subsequently



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

Property

7425/Page 2 of 2

LEAD TESTING OF WATER IN SCHOOLS

occurring in the 2024-2025 school year. By no later than June 30 of the designated Statewide required testing year, the Board shall test all drinking water outlets in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4(g)1. The Board shall sample for lead after the replacement of any drinking water outlet or any other alteration to plumbing or service lines that may impact lead levels at the outlet, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4(~~f~~1 and ~~g~~2).

-
The Board shall submit to the New Jersey Department of Education by June 30 of each year a statement of assurance, that the school district completed lead testing in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4; that notifications were provided consistent with N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4; and that alternative drinking water continues to be made available to all students and staff, if necessary, pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4(~~g~~-i).

-
The Board may apply for reimbursement for the costs of any water supply testing and analysis conducted, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4(jk).

-
N.J.S.A. 58:12A-1 et seq.
N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4
-

Adopted: 19 March 2018



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

DRAFT

Operations
8330/Page 1 of 6
STUDENT RECORDS (M)

8330 STUDENT RECORDS (M)

M

The Board of Education believes that information about individual students must be compiled and maintained in the interest of the student's educational welfare and advancement. The Board will strive to balance the student's right to privacy against the district's need to collect, retain, and use information about individual students and groups of students. The Board authorizes the establishment and maintenance of student files that include only those records mandated by law, rules of the State Board of Education, authorized administrative directive, and those records permitted by this Board.

The Superintendent shall prepare, present to the Board for approval, and distribute regulations that implement this Policy and conform to applicable State and Federal law and rules of the State Board of Education.

General Considerations

The Board ~~of Education~~ shall compile and maintain student records and regulate access, disclosure, or communication of information contained in educational records in a manner that assures the security of such records in accordance with the provisions of N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.1 et seq. Student records shall contain only such information as is relevant to the education of the student and is objectively based on the personal observations or knowledge of the certified school personnel who originate(s) the record. The school district shall provide annual, written notification to parents, adult students, and emancipated minors of their rights in regard to student records and student participation in educational, occupational, and military recruitment programs. Copies of the applicable State and Federal laws and local policies shall be made available upon request. The school district shall make every effort to notify parents and adult students in their dominant language.

Nothing

A non-adult student may assert rights of access only through his or her parent(s). However, nothing in this Policy N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7 shall be construed to prohibit certified school personnel from disclosing at their discretion student records to non-adult students or to appropriate persons in connection with an emergency, if such knowledge is necessary to protect the health or safety of the student or other persons.

No liability shall be attached to any member, officer, or employee of the Board ~~of Education~~ permitting access or furnishing student records in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.1 et seq.

Student Information Directory



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

Operations
8330/Page 2 of 6
STUDENT RECORDS (M)

-
A student information directory is a publication of the Board ~~of Education~~ that includes information relating to a student as defined in N.J.A.C. 6A:32-2.1.- This information includes:- name; grade level; date and place of birth; dates of school attendance; major field of study; participation in officially recognized activities; weight and height relating to athletic team membership; degrees; awards; the most recent educational agency attended by the student; and other similar information.- The student information directory shall be used only by authorized school district personnel and for designated official use by judicial, law enforcement, and medical personnel and not for general public consumption.-

In the event the school district publishes a student information directory, the Superintendent or designee will provide a parent or adult student a ten-day period to submit to the Superintendent a written statement prohibiting the school district from including any or all types of information about the student in any student information directory before allowing access to such directory to educational, occupational, and military recruiters pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:36-19.1 and ~~P.L. 107-110 sec. 9528; 20 U.S.C. §8528~~ - Armed Forces Recruiter Access to Students and Student Recruiting Information of the ~~No-Child Left Behind~~ Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) of 2001-1965. In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:36-19.1, military recruiters will be provided the same access to a student information directory that is provided to educational and occupational recruiters.

- School Contact Directory for Official Use

-
A school contact directory for official use is a compilation by the school district that includes the following information for each student:- name; address; telephone number; date of birth; and school enrollment.- The district shall compile and maintain a school contact directory for official use that is separate and distinct from the student information directory.- The student contact directory may be provided for official use only to judicial and law enforcement personnel, and to medical personnel currently providing services to the student in question.- To exclude any information from the school contact directory for official use the parent, adult student, or emancipated minor shall notify the Superintendent or designee in writing.

- Mandated and Permitted Student Records

-
Mandated student records are those records school districts have been directed to compile by State statute, regulations, or authorized administrative directive in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.3.



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

Operations
8330/Page 3 of 6
STUDENT RECORDS (M)

Permitted student records are those student records not mandated pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.3, but authorized by the Board to promote the student's educational welfare.- The Board shall authorize the permitted records to be collected by adopting Policy and Regulation 8330, which will list such permitted records.

- Maintenance and Security of Student Records

- The Superintendent or designee shall be responsible for the security of student records maintained in the school district.- Policy and Regulation 8330 assure that access to such records is limited to authorized persons.

- Records for each individual student may be stored electronically or in paper format.- When student records are stored electronically, proper security and back-up procedures shall be administered.

- Student health records, whether stored on paper or electronically, shall be maintained separately from other student records, until such time as graduation or termination, whereupon the health history and immunization record shall be removed from the ~~student's~~ health record and placed in the ~~student's~~ mandated record.- Records shall be accessible during the hours in which the school program is in operation.

- Any district internet website shall not disclose any personally identifiable information about a student without receiving prior written consent from the student's parent, in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:36-35.- Personally identifiable information means student names; student photos; student addresses; student e-mail addresses; student phone numbers; and locations and times of class trips.-

- Access to Student Records

- Only authorized organizations, agencies, or persons as defined in N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.5 shall have access to student records, including student health records.- Access to student records shall be provided to persons authorized such access under N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.1 et seq. within ten days of a request, but prior to any review or hearing conducted in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A.

- The district shall control access to, disclosure of, and communication regarding information contained in student health records to assure access only to people permitted by Federal and State statute and regulations in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.5.



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

Operations
8330/Page 4 of 6
STUDENT RECORDS (M)

The district may charge a reasonable fee for reproduction of student records, not to exceed the schedule of costs set forth in N.J.S.A. 47:1A-5, provided that the cost does not effectively prevent the parents or adult students from exercising their rights under N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7 or other Federal and State rules and regulations regarding students with disabilities, including N.J.A.C. 6A:14.

-
Access to and disclosure of a student's health record shall meet the requirements of the Family Education Rights and Privacy Act, 34 C.F.R. Part 99 (FERPA).

-
Only authorized organizations, agencies, or persons as defined in N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.5 shall have access to student records, including student health records.

-
Nothing in N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.1 et seq. or in Policy and Regulation 8330 shall be construed to prohibit school personnel from disclosing information contained in the student health record to students or adults in connection with an emergency, if such knowledge is necessary to protect the immediate health or safety of the student or other persons.

-
In complying with N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7 – Student Records, individuals shall adhere to requirements pursuant to N.J.S.A. 47:1A-10, the Open Public Records Act (OPRA) and 34 CFR Part 99, the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA).

Conditions for Access to Student Records

-
All authorized organizations, agencies, and persons defined in N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.1 et seq. shall have access to the records of a student subject to conditions outlined in N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.6(a).

Rights of Appeal for Parents and Adult Students

-
Student records are subject to challenge by parents and adult students on the grounds of inaccuracy, irrelevancy, impermissible disclosure, inclusion of improper information or denial of access to organizations, agencies, and persons in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.7(a).-

-
To request a change in the record or to request a stay of disclosure pending final determination of the challenged procedure, the parent or adult student shall follow the procedures pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.7(b).

-
Appeals relating to student records for students with disabilities shall be processed in accordance with the requirements of N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.7(b).



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

Operations
8330/Page 5 of 6
STUDENT RECORDS (M)

Regardless of the outcome of any appeal, a parent or adult student shall be permitted to place in the student record a statement commenting upon the information in the student record or setting forth any reasons for disagreement with the decision made in the appeal. - Such statements shall be maintained as part of the student record as long as the contested portion of the record is maintained. - If the contested portion of the record is disclosed to any party, the statement commenting upon the information shall also be disclosed to that party.

- Retention and Disposal of Student Records

- A student record is considered to be incomplete and not subject to the provisions of the Destruction of Public Records Law, N.J.S.A. 47:3-15 et seq., while the student is enrolled in the school district. - The school district shall retain the student health record and the health history and immunization record according to the School District Records Retention Schedule, as determined by the New Jersey State Records Committee.

- Student records of currently enrolled students, other than that described in N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.8(e), may be disposed of after the information is no longer necessary to provide educational services to a student and in accordance with the provisions of N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.8(b).

- Upon graduation or permanent departure of a student from the school district, the parent or adult student shall be notified in writing that a copy of the entire student record will be provided to them upon request. - Information in student records, other than that described in N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.8(e), may be disposed of, but only in accordance with the Destruction of Public Records Law, N.J.S.A. 47:3-15 et seq. - Such disposition shall be in accordance with the provisions of N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.8(c)2.

- No additions shall be made to the record after graduation or permanent departure without the prior written consent of the parent or adult student.

- In accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.8(e), the New Jersey public school district of last enrollment, graduation, or permanent departure of the student from the school district shall keep for 100 years a mandated record of a ~~student's~~ student's name, date of birth, name of parents, gender, health history and immunization, standardized assessment results, grades, attendance, classes attended, grade level completed, year completed, and years of attendance.



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

Operations
8330/Page 6 of 6
STUDENT RECORDS (M)

N.J.S.A. 18A:36-19; 18A:36-19.1; 18A:40-4;
18A:40-19

N.J.A.C. 6A:32-7.1; 6A:32-7.2; 6A:32-7.3;
6A:32-7.4;

6A:32-7.5;

6A:32-7.6; 6A:32-7.7; 6A:32-7.8

-

-

20 U.S.C. §8528

Adopted: 16 June 2008

Revised: 20 March 2017



POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

DRAFT

Community
9713/Page 1 of 2

RECRUITMENT BY SPECIAL INTEREST GROUPS (M)

9713 RECRUITMENT BY SPECIAL INTEREST GROUPS (M)

M

The Board of Education prohibits recruitment activities by outside organizations on school premises, regardless of the purpose of the recruitment or the nature of the recruitment agency. Except as required and referenced below, no information about individual ~~pupils~~ students will be released for the purpose of approaching ~~pupils~~ students for educational, occupational, military, or any other recruitment purpose.

However, a school district that receives funds under ESEA, on request from a military recruiter or an institution of higher education, must provide access to the names, addresses, and telephone listings ~~for of each~~ secondary pupils. Parent(s), legal guardian(s) student served by the Board of Education. Parents and/or ~~the adult pupil~~ students may submit a written request that to the Superintendent or designee to opt out of the disclosure of such information for the student in which case the information will not be released ~~for the child~~ without the ~~prior written parental, legal guardian and/parent's~~ pupil approval. The district will give military recruiters the same right of access to secondary pupils as generally provided to post-secondary institutions and prospective employers. student's written consent.

Parent(s) ~~or legal guardian(s) of secondary students~~ and adult ~~pupils will~~ students shall be informed annually in writing of their right to request a ~~pupil's secondary student's~~ excusal from participation in all recruitment activities and/or from ~~having their child's name, address, and/or telephone~~ listing in provided to a military recruiter, an institution of higher education, or a prospective employer.

The district will give military recruiters the pupil information directory distributed for recruitment purposes same right of access to secondary students as generally provide to post-secondary institutions and prospective employers.

Representatives of bona fide educational institutions, occupational agencies, and the United States Armed Forces may recruit students on school premises by participation in assembly programs, career day activities, and the like and by distributing literature. Permission to recruit on school premises must be requested in writing at least forty-five working days before the planned activity and must be approved in advance by the Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or designee shall not favor one recruiter over another, but shall not approve an activity that, in the judgment of the Superintendent or designee, carries a substantial likelihood of disrupting the educational program of the school or school district.

POLICY

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

Community
9713/Page 2 of 2

RECRUITMENT BY SPECIAL INTEREST GROUPS (M)

Nothing in this ~~policy~~Policy shall be construed as requiring the Board to approve or participate in an activity that appears to advance or inhibit any particular religious sect or religion generally.

-

-

N.J.S.A. 18A:36-19.1

~~No Child Left Behind §9528~~

-

-

Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 – §8528

Adopted: 16 June 2008

-

-

-



REGULATION

DRAFT

ADMINISTRATION
R1642/page 1 of 11
Earned Sick Leave Law
~~Mar 19~~
M

R 1642 EARNED SICK LEAVE LAW (M)

M

A. Definitions Relative to Policy and Regulation 1642 and the New Jersey Earned Sick Leave Law (Act)

“Act” means the New Jersey Earned Sick Leave Law – N.J.S.A. — 34:11D-1. through 34:11D-11.

“Benefit year” means the period of twelve consecutive months, July 1 through June 30, as established by an employer in which an employee shall accrue and use earned sick leave as provided pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:11D-2, provided that once the starting date of the benefit year is established by the employer it shall not be changed unless the employer notifies the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development of the change in accordance with regulations promulgated pursuant to the Act. The Commissioner shall impose a benefit year on any employer the Commissioner determines is changing the benefit year at times or in ways that prevent the accrual or use of earned sick leave by an employee.

“Certified Domestic Violence Specialist” means a person who has fulfilled the requirements of certification as a Domestic Violence Specialist established by the New Jersey Association of Domestic Violence Professionals.

“Child” means a biological, adopted, or foster child, stepchild or legal ward of an employee, child of a domestic partner or civil union partner of the employee.

“Civil union” means a civil union as defined in N.J.S.A. 37:1-29.

“Commissioner” means the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development.

“Department” means the Department of Labor and Workforce Development.

“Designated domestic violence agency” means a county-wide organization with a primary purpose to provide services to victims of domestic violence,

REGULATION

and which provides services that conform to the core domestic violence services profile as defined by the Division of Child Protection and Permanency in the Department of Children and Families and is under contract with the division for the express purpose of providing the services.

“Domestic or sexual violence” means stalking, any sexually violent offense, as defined in N.J.S.A. 30:4-27.26, or domestic violence as defined in N.J.S.A. 2C:25-19, and N.J.S.A. 17:29B-16.

“Domestic partner” means a domestic partner as defined in N.J.S.A. 26:8A-3.

“Employee” means, for the purposes of Policy and Regulation 1642, an individual engaged in service for compensation to a local school district, regional school district, county vocational school, or charter school of the State who is not provided with sick leave with full pay pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:30-2 or any other law, rule, or regulation of New Jersey and is eligible to accrue earned sick leave in accordance with the requirements of the Act.

“Employer” means, for the purposes of Policy and Regulation 1642, a local school district, regional school district, county vocational school, or charter school of the State who does not provide sick leave with full pay to an employee pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:30-2 or any other law, rule, or regulation of New Jersey and is required to comply with the requirements of the Act.

“Family member” means a child, grandchild, sibling, spouse, domestic partner, civil union partner, parent, or grandparent of an employee, or a spouse, domestic partner, or civil union partner of a parent or grandparent of an employee, or a sibling of a spouse, domestic partner, or civil union partner of the employee, or any other individual related by blood to the employee or whose close association with the employee is the equivalent of a family relationship.

“Health care professional” means any person licensed under Federal, State, or local law, or the laws of a foreign nation, to provide health care services, or any other person who has been authorized to provide health care by a licensed health care professional, including but not limited to doctors, nurses, and emergency room personnel.

“Parent” means a biological, adoptive, or foster parent, stepparent, or legal guardian of an employee or of the employee’s spouse, domestic partner, or civil union partner, or a person who stood in loco parentis of the employee or the employee’s spouse, domestic partner, or civil union partner when the employee, spouse or partner was a minor child.

REGULATION

“Retaliatory personnel action” means denial of any right guaranteed under the Act and any threat, discharge, including a constructive discharge, suspension, demotion, unfavorable reassignment, refusal to promote, disciplinary action, sanction, reduction of work hours, reporting or threatening to report the actual or suspected immigrant status of an employee or the employee’s family, or any other adverse action against an employee.

“Sibling” means a biological, foster, or adopted sibling of an employee.

“Spouse” means a husband or wife.

B. Provision of Earned Sick Leave – N.J.S.A. 34:11D-2

1. The employer shall provide earned sick leave in accordance with the Act for each employee working for the employer.
2. For every thirty hours worked, the employee shall accrue one hour of earned sick leave. The employer will not provide an employee their full complement of earned sick leave for a benefit year as required under N.J.S.A. 34:11D-2 on the first day of each benefit year in accordance with the Act.
3. The employer will not permit the employee to accrue or use in any benefit year, or carry forward from one benefit year to the next, more than forty hours of earned sick leave.
 - a. Unless the employee has accrued earned sick leave prior to October 29, 2018, the earned sick leave shall begin to accrue on October 29, 2018 for any employee who is hired and commences employment before October 29, 2018 and the employee shall be eligible to use the earned sick leave beginning on February 26, 2019 after the employee commences employment.
 - b. If the employee’s employment commences after October 29, 2018, the earned sick leave shall begin to accrue upon the date that employment commences. The employee shall be eligible to use the earned sick leave beginning on the 120th calendar day after the employee commences employment.
4. The employer shall be in compliance with N.J.S.A. 34:11D-2 if the employer offers paid time off to an employee, which is fully paid and shall include, but is not limited to personal days, vacation days, and

REGULATION

sick days, and may be used for the purposes of N.J.S.A. 34:11D-3 in the manner provided by the Act, and is accrued at a rate equal to or greater than the rate described in N.J.S.A. 34:11D-2.

5. The employer shall pay the employee for earned sick leave at the same rate of pay with the same benefits as the employee normally earns, except that the pay rate shall not be less than the minimum wage required for the employee pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:11-56a4.
6. Upon the mutual consent of the employee and employer, an employee may voluntarily choose to work additional hours or shifts during the same or following pay period, in lieu of hours or shifts missed, but shall not be required to work additional hours or shifts or use accrued earned sick leave. The employer may not require, as a condition of an employee using earned sick leave, that the employee search for or find a replacement worker to cover the hours during which the employee is using earned sick leave.
7. If an employee is transferred to a separate division, entity, or location, but remains employed by the same employer, then the employee shall be entitled to all earned sick leave accrued at the prior division, entity, or location, and shall be entitled to use the accrued earned sick leave as provided in the Act.
8. If an employee is terminated, laid off, furloughed, or otherwise separated from employment with the employer, any unused accrued earned sick leave shall be reinstated upon the re-hiring or reinstatement of the employee to that employment, within six months of termination, being laid off or furloughed, or separation, and prior employment with the employer shall be counted towards meeting the eligibility requirements set forth in N.J.S.A. 34:11D-2.
9. The employer may choose the increments in which its employees may use earned sick leave, provided that the largest increment of earned sick leave an employee may be required to use for each shift for which earned sick leave is used shall be the number of hours the employee was scheduled to work during that shift.

C. Permitted Usage of Earned Sick Leave – N.J.S.A. 34:11D-3

1. The employer shall permit an employee to use the earned sick leave accrued pursuant to the Act for any of the following:
 - a. Time needed for diagnosis, care, or treatment of, or recovery from, an employee's mental or physical illness, injury or

REGULATION

other adverse health condition, or for preventive medical care for the employee;

- b. Time needed for the employee to aid or care for a family member of an employee during diagnosis, care, or treatment of, or recovery from, the family member's mental or physical illness, injury or other adverse health condition, or during preventive medical care for the family member;
- c. Absence necessary due to circumstances resulting from the employee, or a family member of an employee, being a victim of domestic or sexual violence, if the leave is to allow the employee to obtain for the employee or the family member: medical attention needed to recover from physical or psychological injury or disability caused by domestic or sexual violence; services from a designated domestic violence agency or other victim services organization; psychological or other counseling; relocation; or legal services, including obtaining a restraining order or preparing for, or participating in, any civil or criminal legal proceeding related to the domestic or sexual violence;
- d. Time during which the employee is not able to work because of ~~a~~:
 - (1) A closure of the employee's workplace, or the school or place of care of a child of an employee, by order of a public official ~~or because of a state of emergency declared by the Governor of New Jersey~~, due to an epidemic or other public health emergency, ~~or because of~~;
 - (2) The declaration of a state of emergency by the Governor of New Jersey, or the issuance by a ~~health care provider or the New Jersey Commissioner of Health or other~~ public health authority of a determination that the presence in the community of the employee, or a member of the employee's family in need of care by the employee, would jeopardize the health of others; ~~or~~
 - (3) A state of emergency declared by the Governor of New Jersey, or upon the recommendation, direction, or order of a healthcare provider or the New Jersey Commissioner of Health or other authorized public

REGULATION

official, the employee undergoes isolation or quarantine, or cares for a family member in quarantine, as a result of suspected exposure to a communicable disease and a finding by the provider or authority that the presence in the community of the employee or family member would jeopardize the health of others; or

- e. Time needed by the employee in connection with a child of the employee to attend a school-related conference, meeting, function or other event requested or required by a school administrator, teacher, or other professional staff member responsible for the child's education, or to attend a meeting regarding care provided to the child in connection with the child's health conditions or disability.
2. If an employee's need to use earned sick leave is foreseeable, the employer will require advance notice, not to exceed seven calendar days prior to the date the leave is to begin, of the intention to use the leave and its expected duration, and shall make a reasonable effort to schedule the use of earned sick leave in a manner that does not unduly disrupt the operations of the employer. If the reason for the leave is not foreseeable, the employer will require an employee to give notice of the intention as soon as practicable, if the employer has notified the employee of this requirement.
- a. The employer may prohibit employees from using foreseeable earned sick leave on certain dates provided reasonable notice of these dates is provided to employees and the employer will require reasonable documentation if sick leave that is not foreseeable is used during those dates.
 - b. For earned sick leave of three or more consecutive days, the employer will require reasonable documentation that the leave is being taken for the purpose permitted under N.J.S.A. 34:11D-3.a. and C.1. above.
 - c. If the leave is permitted under N.J.S.A. 34:11D-3.a.(1) and C.1.a. above or N.J.S.A. 34:11D-3.a.(2) and C.1.b. above, documentation signed by a health care professional who is treating the employee or the family member of the employee indicating the need for the leave and, if possible, number of days of leave, shall be considered reasonable documentation.

REGULATION

- d. If the leave is permitted under N.J.S.A. 34:11D-3.a.(3) and C.1.c. above because of domestic or sexual violence, any of the following shall be considered reasonable documentation of the domestic or sexual violence: medical documentation; a law enforcement agency record or report; a court order; documentation that the perpetrator of the domestic or sexual violence has been convicted of a domestic or sexual violence offense; certification from a certified Domestic Violence Specialist or a representative of a designated domestic violence agency or other victim services organization; or other documentation or certification provided by a social worker, counselor, member of the clergy, shelter worker, health care professional, attorney, or other professional who has assisted the employee or family member in dealing with the domestic or sexual violence.
 - e. If the leave is permitted under N.J.S.A. 34:11D-3.a.(4) and C.1.d. above, a copy of the order of the public official or the determination by the health authority shall be considered reasonable documentation.
 - f. If the leave is permitted under N.J.S.A. 34:11D-3.a.(5) and C.1.e. above, tangible proof of the reasons outlined in N.J.S.A. 34:11D-3.a.(5) and C.1.e. above shall be considered reasonable documentation.
3. Nothing in the Act shall be deemed to require the employer to provide earned sick leave for an employee's leave for purposes other than those identified in N.J.S.A. 34:11D-3, or prohibit the employer from taking disciplinary action against an employee who uses earned sick leave for purposes other than those identified in N.J.S.A. 34:11D-3.
4. The employer will not pay an employee for unused earned sick leave at the end of the benefit year pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:11D-3.c.
5. Unless the employer's policy or a collective bargaining agreement provides for the payment of accrued earned sick leave upon termination, resignation, retirement, or other separation from employment, an employee shall not be entitled under N.J.S.A. 34:11D-3 to payment of unused earned sick leave upon the separation from employment.
6. Any information the employer possesses regarding the health of an employee or any family member of the employee or domestic or sexual violence affecting an employee or employee's family member

REGULATION

shall be treated as confidential and not disclosed except to the affected employee or with the written permission of the affected employee.

D. Retaliation, Discrimination Prohibited – N.J.S.A. 34:11D-4 and N.J.S.A. 34:11D-12

1. No employer shall take retaliatory personnel action or discriminate against an employee who accrues sick leave under the Act because the employee requests or uses earned sick leave either in accordance with the Act or the employer's own earned sick leave policy for employees covered under the Act. Any complaints alleging a violation of the Act shall be filed in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 34:11D-4.
 - a. The employer shall not count earned sick leave taken under the Act as an absence that may result in the employee being subject to discipline, discharge, demotion, suspension, a loss or reduction of pay, or any other adverse action.
2. There shall be a rebuttable presumption of an unlawful retaliatory personnel action under N.J.S.A. 34:11D-4 whenever the employer takes adverse action against an employee within ninety days of when that employee:
 - a. Files a complaint with the Department or a court alleging a violation of any provision of N.J.S.A. 34:11D-4;
 - b. Informs any person about the employer's alleged violation of N.J.S.A. 34:11D-4;
 - c. Cooperates with the Department or other persons in the investigation or prosecution of any alleged violation of N.J.S.A. 34:11D-4;
 - d. Opposes any policy, practice, or act that is unlawful under N.J.S.A. 34:11D-4; or
 - e. Informs any person of his or her rights under N.J.S.A. 34:11D-4.
3. Protections of N.J.S.A. 34:11D-4 shall apply to any person who mistakenly but in good faith alleges violations of the Act.

REGULATION

4. Any violator of the provisions of N.J.S.A. 34:11D-4 shall be subject to relevant penalties and remedies provided by the “New Jersey State Wage and Hour Law,” N.J.S.A. 34:11-56a et seq., including the penalties and remedies provided by N.J.S.A. 34:11-56a24, and relevant penalties and remedies provided by N.J.S.A. 2C:40A-2, for discharge or other discrimination.

5. The employer shall not, during the Public Health Emergency and State of Emergency declared by the Governor of New Jersey in Executive Order 103 of 2020 concerning the coronavirus disease 2019 pandemic, terminate or otherwise penalize an employee if the employee requests or takes time off from work based on the written or electronically transmitted recommendation of a medical professional licensed in New Jersey that the employee take that time off for a specified period of time because the employee has, or is likely to have, an infectious disease, as defined in N.J.S.A. 26:13-2, which may infect others at the employee’s workplace.

- a. The employer shall not, following that specified period of time as per D.5. above, refuse to reinstate the employee to employment in the position held when the leave commenced with no reduction in seniority, status, employment benefits, pay, or other terms and conditions of employment.

E. Violations; Remedies, Penalties, Other Measures – N.J.S.A. 34:11D-5

1. Any failure of the employer to make available or pay earned sick leave as required by the Act, or any other violation of the Act, shall be regarded as a failure to meet the wage payment requirements of the “New Jersey State Wage and Hour Law,” N.J.S.A. 34:11-56a et seq., or other violation of the New Jersey State Wage and Hour Law, as the case may be, and remedies, penalties, and other measures provided by the New Jersey State Wage and Hour Law, N.J.S.A. 34:11-58, and N.J.S.A. 2C:40A-2 for failure to pay wages or other violations of the New Jersey State Wage and Hour Law shall be applicable, including, but not limited to, penalties provided pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:11-56a22 and 34:11-56a24, and civil actions by employees pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:11-56a25, except that an award to an employee in a civil act shall include, in addition to the amount provided pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:11-56a25, any actual damages suffered by the employee as the result of the violation plus an equal amount of liquidated damages.

F. Retention of Records, Access – N.J.S.A. 34:11D-6

REGULATION

1. The employer shall retain records documenting hours worked by employees and earned sick leave accrued/advanced, used, paid, and paid out and carried over by/to employees, for a period of five years, and shall, upon demand, allow the Department access to those records to monitor compliance with the requirements of the Act.
 - a. If an employee makes a claim the employer has failed to provide earned sick leave required by the Act and the employer has not maintained or retained adequate records documenting hours worked by the employee and earned sick leave taken by the employee or does not allow the Department access to the records, it shall be presumed the employer has failed to provide the earned sick leave, absent clear and convincing evidence otherwise.
2. In addition, the penalties provided by the "New Jersey State Wage and Hour Law," N.J.S.A. 34:11-56a et seq. for violations of the requirements of the New Jersey State Wage and Hour Law regarding the maintaining and disclosure of records shall apply to violations of the requirements of N.J.S.A. 34:11D-6.

G. Notification to Employees – N.J.S.A. 34:11D-7

1. The employer shall provide notification, in a form issued by the Commissioner, to employees of their rights under the Act, including the amount of earned sick leave to which they are entitled and the terms of its use and remedies provided by the Act to employees if the employer fails to provide the required benefits or retaliates against employees exercising their rights under the Act.
 - a. The employer shall conspicuously post the notification in a place or places accessible to all employees in each of the employer's workplaces.
 - b. The employer shall also provide each employee with a written copy of the notification: not later than thirty days after the form of the notification is issued; at the time of the employee's hiring, if the employee is hired after the issuance; and at any time, when first requested by the employee.
 - c. The Commissioner shall make the notifications available in English, Spanish, and any other language that the Commissioner determines is the first language of a significant number of workers in the State and the employer shall use the notification in English, Spanish, or any other language for

REGULATION

which the Commissioner has provided notifications and which is the first language of a majority of the employer's workforce.

H. Provisions Preemptive; Construction of Act – N.J.S.A. 34:11D-8

1. No provision of the Act, or any regulations promulgated to implement or enforce the Act, shall be construed as:
 - a. Requiring the employer to reduce, or justifying the employer in reducing, rights or benefits provided by the employer pursuant to the employer's policy or a collective bargaining agreement which are more favorable to employees than those required by the Act or which provide rights or benefits to employees not covered by the Act;
 - b. Preventing or prohibiting the employer from agreeing, through a collective bargaining agreement or employer policy, to provide rights or benefits which are more favorable to employees than those required by the Act or to provide rights or benefits to employees not covered by the Act;
 - c. Prohibiting the employer from establishing a policy whereby an employee may donate unused accrued earned sick leave to another employee or other employees; or
 - d. Superseding any law providing collective bargaining rights for employees, or in any way reducing, diminishing, or adversely affecting those collective bargaining rights, or in any way reducing, diminishing, or affecting the obligations of the employer under those laws.
2. Employees or employee representatives may waive the rights or benefits provided under the Act during the negotiation of a collective bargaining agreement.
3. With respect to employees covered by a collective bargaining agreement in effect on October 29, 2018, no provision of the Act shall apply until the stated expiration of the collective bargaining agreement.

I. Severability – N.J.S.A. 34:11D-9

1. The provisions of the Act shall be deemed to be severable and if any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence or other part of the Act is

REGULATION

declared to be unconstitutional, or the applicability thereof to any person is held invalid, the remainder of the Act shall not thereby be deemed to be unconstitutional or invalid.

Adopted: 11 May 2020

Revised:

REGULATION

DRAFT

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

R-2415

R2415.20 NO CHILD LEFT BEHIND COMPLAINTS EVERY STUDENT SUCCEEDS ACT COMPLAINTS (M)

M

Pursuant to 20 USC 7844, Sec 9304 (a)(3)(C), of The Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) requires the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001 (NCLB), a Board of Education shall to adopt a policy and written procedures that offer parent(s) or legal guardian(s), public agencies, other individuals, or organizations a method for receipt and resolution of complaints alleging violations in the administration of the NCLBESSA programs.

A. Complaint Procedure Alleging Aa Violation By Aby a School, School District, Oror Other Agency Authorized By Theby the School District Or Theor the New Jersey Department Of of Education (NJDOE)

1. A Complaintcomplaint is a-writtenan allegation submitted in writing (mail or email) by an individual or organization that a school, school district, or other agency authorized by the school district, or the NJDOE has violated the law in the administration of education programs required by the NCLB ActESSA.

2. A Complaint shall A complaint must identify at a minimum the following:

a. The alleged NCLBESSA violation;

b. A description of previous steps taken to resolve the matter;

c. The facts supporting the alleged violation as understood by the complainant at the time of submission; and

e. d. Any supporting documentation: (e.g., letters, emails, logs, agenda, meeting minutes).



REGULATION

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

3. ~~A Complaint may be submitted in writing or electronically. If a Complaint is submitted electronically, a hard copy should also be sent to the NJDOE via regular mail at the address indicated below.~~
4. ~~A Complaint shall~~ A complaint must be submitted to the Curriculum Coordinator. The Complaint shall be in writing and shall be mailed, hand delivered, or electronically submitted to the Curriculum Coordinator.
5. ~~The Curriculum Coordinator shall be responsible to coordinate the investigation of the allegations in Executive County Superintendent for the Complaint.~~
 - a. ~~The Curriculum Coordinator shall acknowledge receipt of county where the Complaint to the complainant within ten business days of receipt of the Complaint.~~
 - b. ~~The Curriculum Coordinator may meet with building and school, school district administrative staff, teaching staff, support staff, pupils, and/or the complainant(s) to determine if a violation of the administration of a NCLB program has occurred.~~
 - c. ~~The Curriculum Coordinator may request additional information from the complainant regarding the Complaint.~~
 - d. ~~The Curriculum Coordinator shall submit a written report regarding the outcome of the investigation to the complainant.~~
 - e. ~~If the outcome of the investigation concludes a violation has occurred, the Curriculum Coordinator shall identify and impose the appropriate consequences or corrective action to resolve the Complaint.~~
 - f. ~~The outcome of the investigation may conclude the Complaint alleges a violation in the administration of a program by the NJDOE and the complainant shall be informed of the NJDOE Complaint Policy and Procedures as outlined in B. below.~~



REGULATION

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

6. ~~If the complainant is not satisfied with the outcome of the investigation, the complainant may initiate a Complaint by submitting a written Complaint to the NJDOE to the attention of the County Superintendent. A list of the County Offices of Education and County Superintendents can be found at <http://www.state.nj.us/njded/regions/>, or by calling (609) 292-4469 other authorized agency is located.~~

7. ~~-~~

4. When a written Complaint/complaint is received by the ~~County Superintendent, the appropriate NJDOE personnel~~Executive County Superintendent, the Executive County Superintendent will issue a Letter of Acknowledgement to the complainant within ten business calendar days of receipt of the Complaint/complaint. This letter ~~shall~~will contain the following information:

a. ~~-~~ The date the Complaint/complaint was received;

b. ~~-~~ A brief statement of the manner in which the ~~NJDOE~~Executive County Superintendent will investigate the Complaint/complaint;

c. ~~-~~ If necessary, a request for additional information regarding the Complaint/complaint;

d. ~~-~~ ~~The name and phone number of a contact person for status updates; and~~

e. ~~-~~ ~~A tentative~~ A resolution date ~~that is sixty~~within forty-five calendar days from the date the written Complaint/complaint was received by the ~~County Office~~Executive County Superintendent; and

(1) ~~Based on the facts of the alleged violation, an extension of time may be required to resolve the Complaint. If an extension is required, the appropriate NJDOE personnel will issue a follow-up letter prior to the initial resolution date informing the complainant of the revised timeframe.~~



REGULATION

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

8. ~~The~~

e. The name and telephone number of a contact person for status updates.

5. The Executive County Superintendent will coordinate the investigation of a ~~Complaint~~ complaint.

6. When the investigation is complete, the ~~County Superintendent~~ Executive County Superintendent will notify the complainant in writing regarding the outcome of the investigation.

9. ~~If~~

a. If the Executive County Superintendent determines a violation has occurred, the ~~Assistant Commissioner assigned to oversee the matter shall~~ Executive County Superintendent will identify and impose the appropriate consequences or corrective actions as required ~~by~~ in accordance with statute and/or regulation to resolve the ~~Complaint~~ complaint.

10.

b. If the complainant does is not ~~agree~~ satisfied with the ~~NJDOE's decision~~ determination that is made by the Executive County Superintendent, the complainant may ~~appeal~~ submit a written request for review of that determination to the Assistant Commissioner, Division of Learning Supports and Specialized Services via email at

essa@doe.nj.gov

with subject line "ESEA Complaint Decision Review" or via hard copy at the following address:

New Jersey ~~United States~~ Department of Education ~~Secretary~~

at:

Assistant Commissioner

Division of Learning Supports and Specialized Services

P.O. Box 500

Office of Hearings & Appeals



REGULATION

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

~~400 Maryland Avenue, SW~~
~~Washington, DC 20202-4611~~
~~(202) 619-9700~~

~~or at their website at:~~

~~<http://www.ed-oha.org/index.html>~~

Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0500

B. ~~Complaint Procedure~~ Alleging ~~Aa~~ Violation ~~By Theby the~~ New Jersey Department ~~Of of~~ Education (NJDOE)

1. ~~A~~ Complaintcomplaint is a written allegation the NJDOE has violated the law in the administration of education programs required by the NCLBESSA.

2. ~~A~~ Complaint shall complaint must identify at a minimum the following:

a. ~~The~~ alleged NCLBESSA violation;

b. ~~A~~ description of previous steps taken to resolve the matter;

c. ~~The~~ facts supporting the alleged violation as understood by the complainant at the time of submission; and

e. ~~Any~~ supporting documentation: (e.g., letters, emails, logs, agenda, meeting minutes).

3. ~~To initiate a~~ Complaintcomplaint alleging the NJDOE has violated the administration of ~~a NCLB an ESEA~~ program, a complainant must submit a written Complaintcomplaint to the New Jersey Department of Education ~~Chief of Staff or the United States Department of Education Secretary at the~~ Assistant Commissioner, Division of Learning Supports and Specialized Services via email at essa@doe.nj.gov with subject line "ESEA Complaint or via hard copy sent to the following address indicated below. The NJDOE requests the complainant first contact the:



REGULATION

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

New Jersey Department of Education ~~Chief of Staff to resolve the issue.~~

~~New Jersey Department of Education
Office of the Chief of Staff~~

~~P.O. Box 500~~

~~Assistant Commissioner~~

~~Division of Learning Supports and Specialized Services~~

~~P.O. Box 500~~

~~Trenton, New Jersey 08625 Jersey 08625-0500
(609) 292-4442~~

~~U.S. Department of Education~~

~~Office of Hearings & Appeals~~

~~400 Maryland Avenue, SW~~

~~Washington, DC 20202-4611~~

~~(202) 619-9700~~

~~<http://www.ed-oha.org/index.html>~~

4. — When a written ~~Complaint~~ complaint is received by the NJDOE, ~~the Chief of Staff~~ Assistant Commissioner will assign the investigation of this ~~Complaint~~ complaint to the ~~Office of Strategic Initiatives and Accountability or other designated appropriate office.~~ This Office ~~The NJDOE~~ will issue a Letter of Acknowledgement to the complainant within ten ~~business~~ calendar days of receipt of the ~~Complaint.~~ complaint. This letter shall contain the following information:

- a. — The date the ~~Complaint~~ complaint was received;
- b. — A brief statement of the manner in which the ~~Department of Education-NJDOE~~ will investigate the ~~Complaint~~ complaint;
- c. — If necessary, request for additional information regarding the ~~Complaint~~ complaint;
- d. — ~~The name and phone number of a contact person for status updates; and~~



REGULATION

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

e. ~~A tentative~~

d. A resolution date ~~that is sixty~~ within forty-five calendar days from the date ~~that~~ the ~~written Complaint~~ complaint was received.; and

~~(1) Based on the facts of the alleged violation, an extension of time may be required to resolve the Complaint. If an extension is required, the appropriate NJDOE personnel will issue a follow-up letter prior to the initial resolution date informing the complainant of the revised timeframe.~~

e. The name and telephone number of a contact person for status updates.

5. ~~The NJDOE Office of Strategic Initiatives and Accountability will coordinate the investigation of a Complaint assigned by the Assistant Commissioner to investigate a complaint concerning an alleged violation by the NJDOE. will coordinate the investigation of the complaint.~~ When the investigation is complete, the ~~Chief of Staff~~ Assistant Commissioner will notify the complainant in writing regarding the outcome of the investigation.

6. ~~If it is determined~~

a. If the NJDOE Office assigned by the Assistant Commissioner of Education determines a violation by the NJDOE has occurred, the Chief of Staff shall after conducting an investigation, the Assistant Commissioner will identify and impose appropriate consequences or corrective actions as required by action in accordance with the statute and/or regulation to resolve the Complaint complaint.

7.

b. If ~~the~~ complainant ~~does is~~ not ~~agree~~ satisfied with the NJDOE's decision, the complainant may ~~appeal~~ request a review of the NJDOE's decision to the Secretary of the United States Department of Education (USDOE). The complainant may send the request, reasons supporting the



REGULATION

UPPER SADDLE RIVER
BOARD OF EDUCATION

request, and a copy of NJDOE's resolution to the following address:

Secretary, United States Department of Education~~Secretary at the address above:~~
400 Maryland Avenue, SW

Washington, DC 20202-4611

New Jersey Department of Education ~~1/26/07 Memorandum — No Child Left Behind — Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) in New Jersey ESEA~~ Complaint Policy and ~~Procedure~~Procedures

Issued: 13 December 2010

Adopted:



REGULATION

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

STUDENTS

R 5330.01 / Page 1 of 10

ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA (M)

DRAFT

R-

~~5330.01~~ ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANACANNABIS (M)

5330.01

M

A custodial parent, ~~guardian~~, or person having legal custody of a student requesting the administration of medical marijuanacannabis to a qualifying student patient while on school grounds, aboard a school bus, or attending a school-sponsored event must comply with the procedures and requirements of N.J.S.A. 18A:40-12.22 and N.J.S.A. 24:6I-1 et seq. and this Regulation.

A. ~~—~~ Definitions

For the purposes of ~~this~~ Policy:

~~1. "Bona fide physician-patient relationship" means a relationship in which the physician has ongoing responsibility for the assessment, care, and treatment of a qualifying student patient's debilitating medical condition. Regulation 5330.01:~~

~~2. "Certification" means a statement signed by a physician with whom a qualifying student patient has a bona fide physician-patient relationship, which attests to the physician's authorization for the patient to apply for registration for the medical use of marijuana.~~

~~3. "Marijuana~~

~~1. "Cannabis" has the meaning given to marijuana in Section 2 of the "New Jersey Controlled Dangerous Substances Act," N.J.S.A. 24:21-2.~~

~~4. "Medical use of marijuana" means the acquisition, possession, transport, or use of marijuana or paraphernalia by a registered~~



REGULATION

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

STUDENTS

R 5330.01/Page 2 of 10

ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA (M)

~~qualifying student patient as authorized by the New Jersey
Compassionate Medical Marijuana Act (Act).~~

~~5. "Parent" means the custodial parent, guardian, or person who has
legal custody of a qualifying student patient who may also be the
primary caregiver registered and provided a Registry Identification
Card by the New Jersey Department of Health to administer medical
marijuana to a student in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A.
18A:40-12.22 and N.J.S.A. 24:6I-4.~~

~~6. "Physician" means a person licensed to practice medicine and surgery
pursuant to Title 45 of the Revised Statutes with whom the qualifying
student patient has a bona fide physician-patient relationship and who
is the primary care physician, hospice physician, or physician
responsible for the ongoing treatment of a qualifying student
patient's debilitating medical condition, provided; however, that the
ongoing treatment shall not be limited to the provision of
authorization for a qualifying student patient to use medical
marijuana or consultation solely for that purpose.~~

~~7. "Primary caregiver" or "caregiver"~~

~~2. "Commission" means the Cannabis Regulatory Commission
established pursuant to N.J.S.A. 24:6I-24.~~

~~3. "Designated caregiver(s)" means a resident of the State New Jersey
who:~~

~~a. Is at least eighteen years old;~~

~~b. Has agreed to assist with a registered qualifying student
patient's medical use of marijuanacannabis, is not currently
serving as primarya designated caregiver(s) for anothermore~~



REGULATION

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

STUDENTS

R 5330.01/ Page 3 of 10

ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA (M)

than one other qualifying patient, and is not the qualifying student patient's physician health care practitioner;

e. ~~Has~~

c. Is subject to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 24:6I-4.c.(2), has never been convicted of possession or sale of a controlled dangerous substance, unless such conviction occurred after the effective date [Oct. 1, 2010] of the Act N.J.S.A. 24:6I-1 et seq. and was for a violation of Federal law related to possession or sale of marijuanacannabis that is authorized under the Act; N.J.S.A. 24:6I-1 et seq. or N.J.S.A. 18A:40-12.22 et seq.;

d. ~~Has registered with the Department of Health Commission pursuant to N.J.S.A. 24:6I-4 and, except in the case of a designated caregiver(s) who is an immediate family member of the qualified student patient, has satisfied the criminal history record background check requirement of N.J.S.A. 24:6I-4; and~~

e. ~~Has been designated as primary designated caregiver-on(s) by the qualifying student patient's application patient when registering or renewal for a Registry Identification Card renewing a registration with the Commission or in other written notification to the Commission.~~

4. "Health Care Practitioner" means a physician, advanced practice nurse, or physician assistant licensed or certified pursuant to N.J.S.A. 45 who:

a. Possesses active registrations to prescribe controlled dangerous substances issued by the United States Drug Enforcement Administration and the Division of Consumer Affairs in the Department of Law and Public Safety;

b. Is the health care practitioner responsible for the ongoing treatment of a qualifying student patient's qualifying medical



REGULATION

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

STUDENTS

R 5330.01/Page 4 of 10

ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA (M)

condition, the symptoms of that condition, or the symptoms associated with the treatment of that condition, provided; however, that the ongoing treatment shall not be limited to the provision of authorization for a patient to use medical cannabis or consultations solely for that purpose; and

c. If the qualifying student patient is a minor, a pediatric specialist.

5. "Medical use of cannabis" means the acquisition, possession, transport, or use of cannabis or paraphernalia by a registered qualifying student patient as authorized by N.J.S.A. 24:6I-1 et seq. and N.J.S.A. 18A:40-12.22 et seq.

6. "Parent" means the custodial parent or person who has legal custody of a qualifying student patient who may also be the designated caregiver(s) registered with the Commission by the New Jersey Department of Health to administer medical cannabis to a student in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:40-12.22 and N.J.S.A 24:6I-4.

8.

7. "Qualifying student patient" for the purpose of Policy and Regulation 5330.01 means a resident of the State who is a student enrolled and attending school in this school district who has been provided with a certification by a physician pursuant to a bona fide physician-patient relationship and has been issued a Registry Identification Card by the New Jersey Department of Health authorized for the medical use of marijuana cannabis by a health care practitioner in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:40-12.22 and N.J.S.A 24:6I-441 et seq.

9. "Qualifying patient" means a resident of the State who has been provided with a certification by a physician pursuant to a bona fide physician-patient relationship.



REGULATION

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

STUDENTS

R 5330.01/ Page 5 of 10

ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA (M)

10. ~~“Registry Identification Card” means a document issued by the Department of Health that identifies a person as a registered qualifying student patient or primary caregiver.~~

8. “Registration with the Commission” means a person has met the qualification requirements for, and has been registered by the Commission as, a registered qualifying patient, designated caregiver(s), or institutional caregiver(s). The Commission shall establish appropriate means for health care practitioners, health care facilities, medical cannabis dispensaries, law enforcement, schools, facilities providing behavioral health services or services for persons with developmental disabilities, and other appropriate entities to verify an individual’s status as a registrant with the Commission.

B. ~~Registration~~ – Qualifying Student Patient and Primary Designated Caregiver(s)

1. ~~A~~ qualifying student patient must be authorized to engage in the medical use of marijuanacannabis and the primarydesignated caregiver(s) must be authorized to assist the qualifying student patient with the medical use of marijuanacannabis pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 24:6I-1 et seq.

2. ~~A~~ qualifying student patient and their primarydesignated caregiver(s) must complete the registration process in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 24:6I-4 and any other requirements of the New Jersey Department of HealthCommission.

3. ~~The~~ qualifying student patient’s parent shall be responsible to immediately inform the Principal of any change in the status of the student’s ~~Registry Identification Card~~registration with the Commission that would deem the ~~Registry Identification Card~~registration with the Commission null and void due to any reason outlined in N.J.S.A. 24:6I-4~~e or for any other reason.~~ 1 et seq.



REGULATION

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

STUDENTS

R 5330.01/Page 6 of 10

ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA (M)

4. — The qualifying student patient's primarydesignated caregiver(s) shall be responsible to immediately inform the Principal of any change in the status of any primary caregiver's Registry Identification Card designated caregiver(s)'s current registration with the Commission that would deem the Registry Identification Card registration with the Commission null and void due to any reason outlined in N.J.S.A. 24:6I-~~4e or for any other reason~~ 1 et seq.

C. — Submission for Authorization for Administration of Medical MarijuanaCannabis

1. — A parent of a qualifying student patient requesting the administration of medical marijuanacannabis to the student while on school grounds, aboard a school bus, or attending a school-sponsored event must submit a written request to the Principal with ~~a copy~~ proof of ~~a current New Jersey Department of Health Registry Identification Card~~ registration with the Commission for the qualifying student patient and the primarydesignated caregiver(s) and a copy of the physician'shealth care provider's order or prescription indicating dosage information and the method of administration for the medical marijuanacannabis to the qualifying student patient while on school grounds, aboard a school bus, or attending a school-sponsored event.

The Principal may request the parent provide additional documentation from the physicianhealth care provider that the medical marijuanacannabis must be administered during the time of the day when the student is on school grounds, aboard a school bus, or attending a school-sponsored event and the medical marijuanacannabis cannot be administered and/or will not be effective during alternate times when the student is not on school grounds, aboard a school bus, or attending a school-sponsored event.

- a. — The parent's written request and all supporting documentation must be submitted to the Principal at least five school days before the first day of the requested administration.

REGULATION

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

STUDENTS

R 5330.01/Page 7 of 10

ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA (M)

2. — The Principal shall review the ~~submitted Registry Identification Cards~~ proof of current registration with the Commission and supporting documentation submitted by the parent with the school physician, the school nurse, and the Superintendent of Schools.
3. — Upon review and approval of the documentation submitted by the parent, the Principal will inform the parent or primary designated caregiver(s), if the parent is not the primary designated caregiver(s), in writing with the following information:
 - a. — The location (school, office, etc.) where the primary designated caregiver(s) shall report to administer the medical marijuanacannabis;
 - b. — The school staff member(s) who the primary designated caregiver(s) must see to coordinate the administration of medical marijuanacannabis;
 - c. — The time the primary designated caregiver(s) shall report to administer the medical marijuanacannabis;
 - d. — The specific location where the medical marijuanacannabis shall be administered to the student; and
 - e. — A copy of Policy and Regulation 5330.01 – Administration of Medical MarijuanaCannabis.
4. — In the event the Principal, after consultation with the school nurse, school physician, and Superintendent, has a question or concern regarding the ~~Registry Identification Cards~~ current registration with the Commission or supporting documentation submitted by the parent, the Principal or school physician will contact the parent with the question or concern. —
5. — The administration of medical marijuanacannabis on school grounds, aboard a school bus, or at a school-sponsored event, pursuant to



REGULATION

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

STUDENTS

R 5330.01/ Page 8 of 10

ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA (M)

N.J.S.A. 18A:40-12.22, will only be authorized after the approval required by Policy and Regulation 5330.01.

D. — Administration of Medical MarijuanaCannabis

1. — ~~The medical marijuana~~ Medical cannabis shall only be administered by the primarydesignated caregiver(s) and at the approved location, times, and method as indicated in the parent's request that was approved in writing by the Principal.
2. — In accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:40-12.22.b.(5), medical marijuanacannabis cannot be administered to a qualifying student patient while on school grounds, aboard a school bus, or attending a school-sponsored event by smoking or other form of inhalation.
3. — ~~The prescribed~~ Prescribed medical marijuanacannabis must always be in the possession of the primarydesignated caregiver(s) and may not be in the possession of the qualifying student patient at any time on school grounds, aboard a school bus, or at a school-sponsored event.
4. — The Principal, after consultation with the school nurse, school physician, and the Superintendent, will determine a specific location for the administration of the medical marijuanacannabis to the qualifying student patient.
 - a. — The Principal will designate a private area, if possible, for the primarydesignated caregiver(s) to administer the medical marijuanacannabis to the qualifying student patient. — The amount of privacy provided for the administration will depend on the approved method of administration and the designated location. — The location may be a nurse's office, a private office, a private restroom facility, or any other location appropriate for the approved method of administration.



REGULATION

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

STUDENTS

R 5330.01/ Page 9 of 10

ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA (M)

5. — The primarydesignated caregiver(s) shall report to the approved location prior to the scheduled time for the administration of medical marijuanacannabis to the qualifying student patient. — The primarydesignated caregiver(s) must show proof of current registration with the Registry Identification Card Commission and a second form of identification which shall be a photograph identification. —
6. — The Principal or supervising school staff member of a school-sponsored event may designate a school staff member to escort the primarydesignated caregiver(s) to the qualifying student patient at the designated time to the designated location for the administration. —
7. — The Principal may designate a school staff member to observe the administration of the medical marijuanacannabis on school grounds, aboard a school bus, or at a school-sponsored event. —
8. — The primarydesignated caregiver(s) shall assist in the administration of medical marijuanacannabis to the qualifying student patient in accordance with the method and dosage prescribed by the physicianhealth care practitioner and included in the parent's request to the Principal. —
9. — The qualifying student patient shall return to his/her class or event as soon as possible after the administration. —
10. — The primarydesignated caregiver(s) will be escorted outside the school building, away from the school bus, or away from the school-sponsored event, if applicable, by a school staff member after the administration. —
 - a. — The qualifying student patient and/or primarydesignated caregiver(s) may be asked to remain at the location of the administration by the school staff member in the event the student needs some additional time after the administration and before returning to their class or event.



REGULATION

UPPER SADDLE RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION

STUDENTS

R 5330.01/Page 10 of 10

ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA (M)

- 11.—The primarydesignated caregiver(s) shall be responsible for the security of the medical marijuanacannabis on school grounds, aboard a school bus, or at a school-sponsored event before, during, and after the administration.—At no time shall the qualifying student patient have the medical marijuanacannabis in their possession except during the administration process by the primarydesignated caregiver—(s).

-
-
Issued: 20 June 2016
-

Adopted:



REGULATION

DRAFT

R 7425 LEAD TESTING OF WATER IN SCHOOLS (M)

M

The Board of Education shall assure the availability of potable drinking water through sanitary means in school facilities or upon school grounds and shall test the school drinking water quality in accordance with the Safe Drinking Water Act, N.J.S.A. 58:12A-1 and the Planning and Construction Standards for School Facilities, N.J.A.C. 7:10 and N.J.A.C. 6A:26-6.

The school district shall conduct lead sampling and analysis in all drinking water outlets to which a student or staff member has, or may have, access in each school facility, other facility, or temporary facility in accordance with the provisions of N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4.

A. Testing of Drinking Water

1. Schedule

a. Sampling shall be conducted in accordance with a lead sampling plan, which shall include:

(1) A plumbing survey for each facility that identifies how water enters and flows through each facility, the types of plumbing materials used in the facility, such as the service line, piping, solder, fixtures, drinking water outlets where students or staff have or may have access, and point of use treatment, such as drinking water filters;

(2) The names and responsibilities of all individuals involved in sampling; and

(3) The following sampling procedures:

(a) Samples shall be taken after water has sat undisturbed in the school pipes for at least eight hours, but no more than forty-eight hours before the sample is taken.

(i) 24-hour school facilities shall collect first-draw samples at drinking water outlets following a stagnation time that

REGULATION

would likely result in the longest standing time;

- (b) At least eight hours prior to sampling, signs shall be posted to indicate that water shall not be used and access to the buildings subject to the sampling shall be restricted to all but authorized staff members;
- (c) Existing aerators, screens, and filters shall not be replaced or removed prior to or during sampling; and
- (d) All samples shall be collected in pre-cleaned high-density polyethylene (HDPE) 250 milliliter (mL) wide-mouth single-use rigid sample containers that are properly labeled.

2. Analysis of Samples

a. Analysis of samples shall be conducted as follows:

- (1) Analysis shall be conducted by a certified laboratory to analyze for lead in drinking water;
- (2) The laboratory shall use an approved analytical method pursuant to the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act at 40 CFR 141.23(k)(1); and
- (3) Sample analysis shall be conducted in accordance with a Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP), which shall be signed by the Board, the certified laboratory, and the individual responsible for conducting the sampling. The QAPP shall include the identification of analytical methods, chain of custody procedures, data validation and reporting processes, detection limits, reporting to three significant figures, field blanks, and quality control measures required by the certified method.

b. The Superintendent or designee may utilize a technical guidance manual, which will be developed by the New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE), in consultation with the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP), to assist in

REGULATION

the school district's compliance with the sampling and analysis requirements of this Regulation.

3. Designated Statewide Required Testing

a. Notwithstanding the results or date of any prior testing, the Board shall continue to test drinking water outlets as provided in A.2.a. above in the designated Statewide required testing year, which shall be every third school year beginning with the 2021-2022 school year and subsequently occurring in the 2024-2025 school year:

(1) By no later than June 30 of the designated Statewide required testing year, the Board shall test all drinking water outlets. Sampling shall be prioritized, such that buildings and facilities that previously had outlets with results above the action level or identified in the plumbing profile as high risk for lead shall be sampled first in accordance with the sampling plan; and

(2) The Board shall sample for lead after the replacement of any drinking water outlet or any other alteration to plumbing or service lines that may impact lead levels at the outlet.

b. If the Board tests drinking water outlets for lead more frequently than the three-year cycle set forth in A.3.a. above, the notification requirements set forth in B.2.b. below shall apply.

(1) If drinking water outlets are tested more frequently in accordance with A.3.b. above, the Board shall make the most recent results for each facility available on the Board's website.

4. Statement of Assurance

a. The Board shall submit to the NJDOE by June 30 each year a statement of assurance that lead testing was completed, that notifications were provided, and that alternate drinking water continues to be made available in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4.

5. Exception from Testing Requirements

REGULATION

- a. The Board may request an exemption from the testing requirements set forth in A.2. above if they can demonstrate that they do not use any drinking water outlets for consumption or food preparation in any of their facilities.
- b. The Board shall submit an application to the NJDOE documenting that no drinking water outlets are used in their facilities and the provisions for an alternative source of drinking water.
- c. If the school district receives an exemption from the NJDOE from testing, the Board shall make available for public inspection at the school facility and on the Board's website, if applicable, confirmation that the school district is exempt from testing.
- d. No later than June 30 of each Statewide required testing school year set forth in A.3. above, the Board shall either begin testing procedures in accordance with section A.3.a. above or reapply for an exemption under section A.5.

B. Water Testing – Laboratory Results

- 1. The Superintendent or designee shall complete a review of final laboratory results within seventy-two hours of receipt.
- 2. Within twenty-four hours after the Superintendent or designee has reviewed the final laboratory results, the Superintendent or designee shall:
 - a. Make the test results of all water samples publicly available at the school facility in accordance with section B.3. below and make the results from the most recent required Statewide testing available on the Board's website; and
 - b. If any results exceed the permissible lead action level, provide written notification to the parents of all students attending the facility, facility staff, and the Department of Education. This written notification shall be posted on the Board's website and shall include a description of the following:
 - (1) Measures taken by the Board or its designee, to immediately end use of each drinking water outlet where water quality exceeds the permissible lead action level;

REGULATION

- (2) Any additional remedial actions taken or planned by the Board;
 - (3) The measures taken to ensure that alternate drinking water has been made available to all students and staff members at the school(s) where the water outlet(s) is located; and
 - (4) Information regarding the health effects of lead.
 3. Test results of all water samples shall remain publicly available in accordance with the timeline established by the Department of the Treasury in the Records Retention Schedule.
- C. Reimbursement
 1. The Board shall be eligible to be reimbursed for the water supply testing and analysis conducted pursuant to section A.3. above after July 1, 2021, as approved by the NJDOE and subject to available funds.
 2. To be eligible to receive reimbursement, the Board shall complete and submit to the NJDOE a reimbursement application on a form, or in a format, supplied by the NJDOE.
 - a. The NJDOE will make the reimbursement application available on its website.
 3. If the school district conducts additional testing in a year other than the Statewide required testing school year as set forth in A.3. above, the district shall not be eligible for reimbursement.
- D. Failure to Comply
 1. Failure to comply with any requirement of N.J.A.C. 6A:26-12.4 and Policy and Regulation 7425 may result in any of the following:
 - a. Board's disqualification for reimbursement pursuant to C. above;
 - b. The NJDOE's initiation of an investigation by the Office of Fiscal Accountability and Compliance; and

REGULATION

- c. The Commissioner's withholding of State aid pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:2-1.2.

Adopted: